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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-ninth (39™) Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of M/S. TOWER
INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED, will be held at its Registered Office at 6, Old Post Office Street, 4%
Floor, Kolkata-700 001 on Wednesday , September 23, 2020 at1.00 P.M. to transact the following business;

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider and. if thought fit. to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

Adoption of Financial Statements:

To consider and adopt (a) the Audited Standalonefinancial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2020 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the Audited Consolidated financial statement of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and the report of Auditors thereon and in this regard, pass the
following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

(a) “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2020 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered

and adopted.”

(b) “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2020 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby

considered and adopted.”
Re-appointment of Mrs. Anita Himatsingka, as a Director, liable to retire by rotation:

To appoint Mrs. Anita Himatsingka, (DIN: 01201879), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment as a Director and in this regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Anita Himatsingka, (DIN:
01201879), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby
re-appointment, as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Approval of Related Party Transactions:

To _consider and, if thought fit. to pass with or without modification(s) the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution: '

“RESOLVED FURTHER THATpursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and other
applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as
amended till date, Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and the Company's Policy on Related Party transaction(s) and
subject to such other approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of any authorities as may be necessary, and also
pursuant to the consent of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors vide resolutions passed at their respective
meetings, the approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board), to approve all existing
contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/transaction(s) and to enter into new/ further contract(s)/arrangement(s)/
agreement(s)/transaction(s) (including any modifications, alterations, amendments or renewal thereto), in the ordinary
course of business and on arm’s length basis with the related parties and transactions between the Company and Entities
in which Key Managerial Personnel/ Directors have significant influence for the Financial Year 2020-21, within the
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meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1) (zb) of the Listing Regulations, as per details as set out under
item no. 4 of the Statement annexed to this Notice.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (“Board”) be and is hereby authorised to perform and execute
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and to delegate all or any of the powers may be deemed
necessary, to any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary or any other Officer of the Company to

give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in any of the foregoing resolution are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respect.”

. By order of the Board
Place : Kolkata ForTower Investment & Trading Co. Ltd.
Dated :30" July, 2020 e 7,
(_ ) {Ir}ltfl,( !x{«w‘ti“‘
Swarup Kumar Maity Protul Dutta
Director Director
DIN:01200281 DIN: 07719740

NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL AT THE ABOVE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND
A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE VALID MUST BE
RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING
IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING YOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE
PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR

SHAREHOLDER.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send a duly certified copy
of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting

(AGM) or upload it on the e-voting portal.
Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the meeting.

Members / Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the meeting. Members who hold shares in dematerialized
form are requested to write their Client ID and DP ID numbers and those who hold shares in Physical form are requested

to write their Folio Number in the attendance slip for attending the meeting. .

In case of joint holders attending the meeting only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to
vote, .

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Regiéters of the Company will remain close from 17" September, 2020 to
23" September, 2020, both days inclusive.
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10.

11.

13.

15.

Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special Business to be
transacted at the meeting are annexed hereto.

Details under the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (as amended)
in respect of Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting are contained in the Explanatory Statement
pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Equity shares of the Company are listed with Calcutta Stock Exchanges. There are no dues with regard to payment of
Listingfees.The ISIN code of the Company is INEOA0Z01015. The CSE Scrip Code of the Company is 030092.

The investors are requested to enroll their e-mail ids with the Company and can write to the Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent at rta@cbmsl.com or to the Company tower_investment@yahoo.com.

The Company has appointed the following Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) to deal with both Physical and Demat
shares.

Alankit Assignments Limited

205-208, Anarkali Complex,

Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi-110 055
Phone No. 011 42541234/ 23541234
FaxNo. : 011 42541201
E-mail: rta@alankit.com

Members are requested to send their queries relating to share transfer/transmission, change of address, etc. to the above
address.

All documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying Explanatory Statement and copy of Audited Financial
Statements, the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholdings, the Register of Contracts or
Arrangements in which the Directors are interested and every other documents required by law to be annexed or attached
to the Financial Statements as per Section 136 of Companies Act, 2013, are open for inspection at the Registered Office of
the Company, on all working days from Monday to Friday in between 10am to Spm, up to the date of the Annual General
Meeting and also at the venue of the Annual General Meeting.

This notice of Meeting and the Annual Report is also available on the Company’s website http://www.assamcarbon.in for
download and also on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with the copy of Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent by electronic

mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories, unless any Member has
requested for a physical copy of the same. For members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies
are being sent by the permitted mode.

Members are requested in their own interest:
a) To notify the Company / Registrar and Share Transfer Agent about their PAN, any change in address/name with

correct pin code, mandate/ bank details and their e-mail id, etc with supporting documents.

b) To quote correct Folio No. / Client ID. No. and DP ID. No. in all correspondence with the Company/ Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent to facilitate better service to the members.

c) To dematerialize the Equity Shares of the Company held in physical mode.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nominations is available to the members in respect
of the shares held by them. Nomination forms can be obtained from the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents by
Members holding shares in physical form. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain Nomination forms from
their respective Depository Participant.
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17.

19

20.

To support the “Green Initiative’, the Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses are requested to register the
same with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/ Depositories.

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN)

by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit
their PAN to their Depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares
in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company / Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

Members seeking any information with regard to Accounts/ Financial Statements are requested to write to the Company at
an early date, so as to enable the management to keep the information ready at the Meeting.

Procedure of Voting through Electronic Means

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015
and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013, as may be amended
from time to time, the Company is pleased to provide its Members, facility of voting by electronic means in respect of
business to be transacted at the 39" Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be
transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the Members using an electronic voting system
from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL).

The facility for voting through Ballot Paper shall also be made available for the members at the AGM and the Members
attending the Meeting who have not casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the

Meeting through Ballot Paper.

The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be
entitled to cast their vote again.

The remote e-voting period commences on 20" September, 2020 (at 9.00 a.m. IST) and ends on 22™ September, 2020 (at
5.00 p.m. IST). During this period Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized
form, as on the cut-off date i.e. 16" September, 2019, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall

not be allowed to change it subsequently.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: Step 1
Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

How to Log-into NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholders’ section.
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3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as

shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at

hitps://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices afier
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed ta Step 2 ie. Cast your vote

electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below:
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL { Your User ID is:

or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

account with NSDL.,
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is
[2***%%¥ then your user D is IN3QQ*** | 2%%*%wkx*_

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

account with CDSL.
For example if your Beneficiary [D is ]2%%*kxskkskkkok sk

then your user ID is [2¥*¥*&*®sbkxnis

¢) For Members holding shares in Physical | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with
Form., the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***

5. Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to
enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? .

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the
.pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last
8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form.
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID” and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your
postal address.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the * Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password ?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.,

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting(@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, vour name and
your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-voting
system of NSDL.
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After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions™ by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

290 o

Details on Step 2 are given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

I. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then, click on
Active Voting Cycles.

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding

shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. '

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which

you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

S

o

|

General Guidelines for shareholders

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to ssmahataassociates@gmail.com with a copy
marked to evoting(@nsdl.co:in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User
Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual
for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or

send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

VL

¥l

VIIL

IX.

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used for
sending future communication(s).

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as
on the cut-off date i.e.16™ September, 2020.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of
AGM and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 16" September, 2020, may obtain the login ID and password by
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or rta@cbmsl.com mentioning his/her Folio Number/DPID and Client ID.
However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and
password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User
Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800-222-
990.

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
depositories as on the closing working hours of cut-off date only, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting
as well as voting at the AGM through Ballot Paper (who have not casted their vote electronically).

Mr. Sumantra Sarathi Mahata, Practicing Company Secretary, Kolkata, (Membership No.: 27384, CP No.: 13473) who
has consented to act as the scrutinizer and is available for the purpose of ascertaining the requisite majority, has been
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XI.

XIL

XL

appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process/ballot/poll in a fair and transparent
manner.

Chairman shall, at the AGM, after the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting
with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of Ballot or polling Paper for all those Members who are present at the AGM but
have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the Meeting
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the
employment of the Company and within a period not exceeding 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM, make a
consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company or
any other person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting

forthwith.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the website of the Company www.tower.net.in
and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a
person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be communicated to the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited

within the prescribed time limit.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory
statement sets out all material facts relating to business mentioned under Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice:

Re: Item 3

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’), the Company is required to obtain consent of the Board of Directors and prior approval of the Members by
way of Ordinary Resolution, in case certain transactions with Related Parties exceeds such sum as is specified in the said Rules. The
aforesaid provisions are not applicable in respect of transactions which are in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.

However, pursuant to Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the ‘Listing Regulations’), approval of the Members through Ordinary Resolution is required for all Material Related
Party Transactions, even if they are entered into in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. For this purpose, a transaction
is considered material, if the transaction/transactions to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a
Financial Year exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company, as per thé last audited financial statements of the Company.

The Company proposes to enter into contracts/ arrangements with related parties as mentioned below, which are in the ordinary course of
business. Further, the estimated value of the proposed transaction is likely to exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021 and therefore may exceed the Materiality threshold as prescribed under
Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. Thus, these transactions would require the approval of the Members by way of an Ordinary
Resolution.

Approval of the Members is sought to enable the Board to approve all existing contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ agreecment(s)/transaction(s) and
to enter into new/ further contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/transaction(s) (including any modifications, alterations, amendments or
rencwal thereto)with the said parties subject to the limits mentioned in the table below:

Name of the related | Nature of Contracts/ | Duration of Contract/ Salient Amount

party & Nature of | arrangements/ transactions Arrangements/ Terms (Rs.)

Relationship Transactions

Budge Budge Carbon Ltd. | Opening Balance of Loan Payable on Demand 9% 60.00,000.00/-

Common Director Loan Taken 80,00,00.000/-
Outstanding Credit Balance 80,00,000.00,/-

New Look Investment Opening Balance of Loan Payable on Demand 9% 60,00,000.00/-

(Bengal) Ltd. Loan Taken 80,00,00.000/-

Relation with Director Outstanding Credit Balance i 50,00,000.00,/-

Regulation 23 (7) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015 provides
that all Entities falling under the definition of Related Parties shall not vote to approve any related Party Transaction, irrespective of whether
the Entity is a party to the transaction or not. Therefore, none of the Promoter Group Entities holding share(s) will vote on the above

Resolution.

Except Mr. Shaurya Veer Himatsingka and Mrs. Anita Himatsingka who holds Directorship and have relative holding Directorshipin some
of the Companies which are related party of the Company, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

Your Board proposes the resolution, as set out at Item No.4 of the Notice, for approval of the Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

Memorandum of Interest:
Except Mr. Shaurya Veer Himatsingka and Mrs. Anita Himatsingka, none of the Directors of the Company and Key Managerial Personnel

and their relatives are in any way concerned or interested in the above resolution except as members.

By order of the Board
Place :Kolkata For Tower Investment & Trading Co. Ltd.
Dated :30" July, 2020
I < .'? -
. [0 e
"Swarup Kumar Maity Protul Dutta
Director Director

DIN:01200281 DIN:07719740
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BRIEF PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION / SEEKING APPOINTMENT / REAPPOINTMENT

Name of the Director Mrs. Anita Himatsingka
Date of Birth . " 15" September, 1953
Date of Appointment 3 June, 2017
Expertise in specific functional areas & Justification for Business Management
choosing the appointees for appointment / re-appointment
Qualifications B. A. (Honours) in English from Delhi University
List of outside Directorship held I. Assam Plywood Limited

2 Assam Carbon Products Ltd.

3. Shree Shyam Orchid Estates Lid.

4 APL Investments Limited

5. Goneril Investment & Trading Co. Ltd.

6. Budge Budge Carbon Limited

7. Jyotsana Investment Co Ltd

8. Prabhushil Group Investment Ltd.

9. Sunray Vanijya Pvt. Ltd.

10. APL Holdings& Investments Ltd.

Chairman/Member of the Committee of other Companies in
which he/she is a Director

a)Audit Committee ' 1. Jyotsana Investment Co Ltd(Member)

2. Goneril Investment & Trading Co. Ltd. (Member)

b) Stakeholders Relationship Committee hl. Jyotsana Investment Co Ltd(Member)

2. Goneril Investment & Trading Co. Ltd. (Member)
¢)Nomination and Remuneration Committee 1. lyotsana Investment Co Ltd(Member)

. Goneril Investment & Trading Co. Ltd. (Member)

Shareholding in the Company as on 31.03.20 100
Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se Mother of Mr. Shaurya Veer Himatsingka
Terues a.nd Con-ditions ok appoil:ltmentfre-appointn_ient As per the resolution at item no. 2 of the Notice convening Annual
along with details of remuneration sought to be paid and | General Meeting on September 23, 2020 read with explanatory
remuneration last drawn by such person (including sitting statement thereto
fees)
Note:

e CM —Chairman of the Committee.

e M- Member of the Committee.

e  Directorship in Foreign Co.’s & Companies U/s 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded.
Chairmanship/Membership of the Audit Committee, Shareholders’ Grievance Committee and Nomination & Remuneration
Committee alone has been considered.

By order of the Board

Place :Kolkata For Tower Investment & Trading Co. Ltd.
Dated :30" July, 2020 _
™D~ V), -
«ﬁjﬁ/' Lot ot
Swarup Kumar Maity Protul Dutta
Director Director

DIN:01200281 DIN:07719740
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty-ninth (39") Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited

Accounts for the financial year ended 31" March, 2020 as under:

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

Particulars for the vear ended 31-03-2020

PARTICULARS

31-03-2020 (Rs.)

31-03-2019 (Rs.) |

Total Income

16,97,414.00

22,20,232.00

Total Expenses

1,12.40.169.00

1.19.29.862.00

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax

(95,42,755.00)

(97.09,630.00)

Less: Tax Expenses
- Current Tax
- Deferred Tax
- Earlier year

(18,97.462.00)
6,84.641.00

4.47,472.00
(14,55,344.00)

|
1

Profit /(Loss) After Tax

(83.29.934.00)

(47.13,810.00) |

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

[tems not be re-classified to profit or loss 2,32,500.00 -
- Change in fair value FOVCI equity instruments (43,547.00) 4,096.00
- Income tax relating to this items
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (81,40,981.00) (47,09,714.00)
Eamings per share (Basic& Dilute) (20.21) (11.43)

DIVIDEND

Considering overall performance of the financial year 2019-20, emerging challenges consequent to COVID-19, uncertain
economic environment and with an objective to conserve cash and ensure sufficient liquidity for operations, Directors do
not recommend dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

OPERATIONS:

The Company witnessed moderate growth in the first half of the year. The last part of 4th quarter was crashed by the
unforeseen lessening impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. During the year under review, the Company has recorded total
income of Rs.16,97,414/- as compared to Rs. 22,20,232/- in the previous year and Net loss after tax isRs. 83.,29.934/- for
the year as compared to a loss of Rs. 47,13,810/- in the previous year.

COVID-19 IMPACT

The Covid-19 pandemic is the defining global health crisis of our time and is spreading very fast across the continents. But
it is much more than a health crisis and is having an unprecedented impact on people and economies worldwide. The
COVID-19 pandemic has caused a huge disruption creating an unprecedented impact on the financial well-being of nations,
corporations and individuals. The businesses worldwide have been hugely impacted by the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic
which has resulted in significant reduction in economic activities across all sectors

The Company is taking all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the challenges being faced in the
business. Though the long-term directional priorities of the Company remain firm, in light of Covid-19 and its expected
impact on the operating environment, the key priorities of the Company would be to closely monitor.

The Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India on March 24, 2020 notified the first ever nationwide lockdown in
India to contain the outbreak of Covid-19. In view of the outbreak of the pandemic, the Company undertook timely and
essential measures to ensure the safety and well-being of all its employees at its offices. The Company observed all the
government advisories and guidelines thoroughly and in good faith. The Company’s business has been affected due to
interruption in operational activities, functional disruption, unavailability of personnel, closure/lock down of various other
facilities etc. The revenue, profitability and operating cash flows of the Company were significantly impacted on account of
outbreak of Covid-19,
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SIGNIFICANT MATTER DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW: SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

During the Financial year 2019-2020, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 1st October 2019,
approved the scheme of amalgamation of Khatu Investment & Trading Company Limited and New Look Investment
(Bengal) Limited with the Company effective from 01 April 2019 as the Appointed Date and filled the scheme with the
stock exchanges for obtaining the No Objection/Observation pursuant to Regulation 37 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.
However, due to the spread of COVID 19 pandemic in India and subsequent lockdowns, there were inevitable delay in
getting the regulatory approvals and hence the Board of Directors withdrew the scheme with the intent to reconsider the
scheme at a later date.

SHARE CAPITAL:

During the period under review, the Company has neither issued any class of shares nor was there any buy-back of shares
during the year under review. Further, the Company does not have any stock option scheme for its employees. The Paid-up
Equity Capital as on 31* March, 2020 was Rs.41,21,300/-.

ADOPTION OF INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

The Company has adopted and implemented the Indian Accounting Standards (“*IND AS”) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 during the year for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements.
Consequently, the Financial Statements of the previous year have had been restated to conform to the provisions of Ind AS.
The corresponding reconciliation and description of the effects of the transition from the provisions of the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2005 has been provided under Note 3 to the Financial Statements.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT:
The Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC)has not accepted / renewed any public deposit under
section 73 of the Companies act, 2013, read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH RBI GUIDELINES
The company has adopted “Fair practices Code” and continues to comply with all the applicable regulations, circulars
and guidelines issued by the RBI for every NBFC Companies from time to time.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There has been no change in nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year 2019-2020.

RESERVES:
During the Financial Year 2019-20 no amount has been transferred to Reserve.

GOING CONCERN STATUS:
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals passed no orders during the year affecting the Company’s going concern status and its
future operations

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ AND THEIR REPORT:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), M/s. D. Basu& Co.,
Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 301111E) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 38th
Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2019 for a term of five years i.e. from the conclusion of the 38th Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion 43™ Annual General Meeting .

The requirement of seeking ratification by the members for continuance of their appointment has since been withdrawn
consequent to changes made by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2018 with effect from May 07, 2018. Hence, the
resolution seeking ratification of the members for their appointment is not being placed at the ensuing Annual
GeneralMeeting.

The Report of the Auditors for the year ended 3 1st March, 2020 forming part of this Annual Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, observation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

INTERNAL AUDITOR:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the
Company has appointed M/s. Lhila& Co., Chartered Accountants of Kolkata (Firm Registration No. 313130E)to undertake
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the Internal Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21. There stood no serious adverse finding & reporting by
the Internal Auditor in his Internal Audit Report for the year ended 317 March, 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of your Company consists of the following directors:
NAME OF DIRECTORS DESIGNATION DIN
Mr. Swarup Kumar Maity Executive Whole-Time Director 01200281 |
Mr. Shaurya Veer Himatsingka Non-Executive Director 01200202
Mrs. AnitaHimatsingka Non-Executive Women Director 01201879
Mr. Protul Dutta Non-Executive Independent Director 07719740
Mr. Bijoy Kumar Sarkar Non-Executive Independent Director 00849772

The Board of Directors of your Company, based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(*NRC™), approved the following re-appointments on the Board of the Company:

Mrs. AnitaHimatsingka (DIN: 01201879), retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The
Board recommends herappointment.

Appropriate Resolutions for confirming the above re-appointment(s), forms part of the Notice convening the 39th Annual
General Meeting (*AGM”) scheduled to be held on September 22, 2020.

Brief profile and particulars of experience, attributes and skills that qualify the above Directors for the Board membership
are disclosed in the Notice convening the AGM to be held on September 22, 2020.

As per the disclosure received from the Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified from being appointed as Directors
as specified in Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013,

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

(i) Mr. Swarup Kumar Maity, Whole-Time Director
(ii) Mr. Goutam Kumar Das, Chief Financial Officer
(iii) Ms. Varsha Jain, Company Secretary cum Compliance officer

During the year under review, the Board of Director appointed Ms. Varsha Jain, as Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer of the Company.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION:

The Company has received declarations pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 from all the Independent
Directors of the Company, confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force], in respect of
their position as an “Independent Director” of Tower Investment & Trading Company Limitedand are independent of the
Management. In terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, Independent Directors of the Company have undertaken requisite steps towards the inclusion of their names in
the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Company has an Internal Financial Control System, Commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. The Internal Audit Function is done by independent Chartered Accountant, whose reports test the effectiveness
of Internal Financial Controls in accordance with the requisite standards prescribed by ICAL and have being placed the
same in the Audit Committee and Board for their review. Their objective is to ensure efficient usage and protection of the
Company’s resources, accuracy in financial reporting and due compliance of statutes and procedures. The internal control
structure showed no reportable material weaknesses. The Company’s Internal Financial Control System is commensurate
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with current best practices and effectively addresses emerging challenges of its business. The Company has a process in
place to continuously identify gaps and implement newer and or improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would
have a material effect on the Company’s operation.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company’s Risk Management Policy is well defined to identify and evaluate business risks across all business. It
assesses all risk at both pre and post-mitigation levels and looks at the actual or potential impact that a risk may have on the
business together with an evaluation of the probability of the same occurring. Risk mapping exercises are carried out with a
view to regularly monitor and review the risks, identity ownership of the risk, assessing monetary value of such risk and
methods to mitigate the same.

EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE
The Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, of each Board Member individually, as well as the
working of its Committees in compliance with the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations.

The Board works with the nomination and remuneration committee to lay down the evaluation criteria for the performance
of executive / non-executive / independent directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV thereto, an exclusive
meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was duly convened and held between themselves on 1 1th February
2020 during the Financial Year 2019-20.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

A tentative calendar of Board Meetings is prepared and circulated to the Board Members in advance before the beginning
of financial year. A minimum of four Board Meetings are held annually. Additional Board Meetings are convened by
giving appropriate notice to address the Company’s specific needs, if any. In case of business exigencies or urgency of
matters, resolutions are passed by circulation. The Company has held at least one Board Meeting in every three months and
the maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings have always been less than one hundred and twenty days.

The Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times during the financial year 2019-2020, namely, on 16-04-2019; 14-05-2019; 30-05-
2019; 09-09-2019; 10-12-2019 &13-02-2020 respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee as on 317 March, 2020comprises of 3 (three) members out of which, 2 (two) are Non-Executive
Independent Directors and 1 (one) is Non-Executive Directors namely, Mr. Bijoy Kumar Sarkar (Chairperson) and Mr.
Protul Dutta (Member) and Mrs. AnitaHimatsingka(Member) respectively. The Whole-time Director and Chief Financial
Officer werethe invitees to the Meetings along with the Auditors.

I.‘s'l

During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times during the financial year 2019-2020, on
30-05-2019; 09-09-2019; 10-12-2019& 13-02-2020 respectively. The maximum gap between any two consecutive
meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days. All recommendations of the Audit Committee were duly accepted by
the Board.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31 March, 2020comprises of 3 (three) members out of which, 2
(two) are Non-Executive Independent Directors and | (one) is Non-Executive Directors namely, Mr. Protul Dutta
(Chairperson) and Mr. Bijoy Kumar Sarkar (Member) and Mrs. AnitaHimatsingka(Member) respectively.

During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 (Two) times during the
financial year 2019-2020, on 14-05-2019 & 09-12-2019 respectively.
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The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been prepared in accordance with Section 178(3) of the Act and
is available at www.tower.net.in under the Heading About Us—> Investor Relations.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

TheStakeholders Relationship Committee as on 31 March, 2020comprises of 3 (three) members out of which, 2 (two) are
Non-Executive Independent Directors and 1 (one) is Non-Executive Directors namely, Mr. Bijoy Kumar Sarkar
(Chairperson) and Mr. Protul Dutta (Member) and Mrs. Anita Himatsingka(Member) respectively.One meeting of the
Committee held during the financial year 2019-20 under review on 11-06-2019.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
if any, granted, form part of the notes to the Financial Statements provided in this Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Secretarial Audit Report
and the Non-disqualification Certificate of Directors issued by the Secretarial Auditors, Rajat Kumar Jalan, Practicing
Company Secretaries (Membership No. ACS14895, C P No.5703) for the financial year 2019-20 are annexed as “Annexure
— A” and forms a part of this Report. There are no qualifications, observations or adverse remarks made by the Secretarial
Auditor in their Reports.

Pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, the Company is exempted from the
applicability of Annual Secretarial Compliance Report under Regulation 24A of SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year ending 3 Ist March, 2020.

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, have appointed Rajat Kumar Jalan, Practicing
Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019-20. The Company has
received consent from the Secretarial Auditors relating to the said appointment.

During the year, the Company has complied with the applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY AUDITOR
As per Auditors’ Report, no fraud u/s 143(12) was reported by the auditors

CEQ/CFO CERTIFICATION:

The Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board in accordance with Regulation 17(8) read
with Part B of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations pertaining to CEO/CFO certification for the year ended March 3 1.
2020 that the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 do not contain any untrue statement and that these
statements represent a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and other matters asspecitied thereunder.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

In accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 including amendments
thereof, the Company has adopted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading and procedures for
fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information for its designated employees.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

Code of Conduct Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has in place a Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors, Senior
Managers and all other Employees of the Company. The Code of Conduct is also available on the website of the Company
at web-link: www.tower.net.in.




TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

CIN : L67120WB1981PLC033500
Registered Office :
‘Temple Chambers’ 6, Old Post Office Street, 4" Floor, Kolkata-700 001
Phone No.: 033 2230-7373/2248-3854
E-mail: tower_investment@yahoo.comWebsite : www.tower.net.in

31.

32.

33.

34.

36.

37.

A declaration by the Whole Time Director under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.stating that all Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel have complied with the Code of Conduct during the Financial Year ended 31st March 2020 is attached herewith
and marked as “Annexure - B” to this Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

During the financial year the Company has one wholly owned Subsidiary Company namely M/s. Saket Cement Products
Private Limited (CIN: U27310WBI1988PTC045233) and one Associate Company namely M/s. Khatu Investment &
Trading Co. Ltd. (CIN:L65993WB1979PLC032406) having equity interest to the extent 22.80%,

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as prescribed under Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements form a part
of this Report. These statements have been prepared on the basis of Audited Financial Statements received from the
Subsidiary Companies as approved by their respective Boards. Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act. 2013, a
statement in Form AOC-1 containing the salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s Subsidiaries is also
provided in this Annual Report and is annexed as “Annexure — C”,

Pursuant to provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the financial statements of the Company, consolidated
financial statements along with relevant documents and separate audited accounts of M/s. Saket Cement Products Private
Limited and M/s. Khatu Investment & Trading Company Limited are available on the website of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All Related Party Transactions entered during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course
of the business and were placed before the Audit Committee and to the Board for their approval. There has been no
materially significant Related Party Transactions during the year under review, having potential conflict with the interest of
the Company. Necessary disclosures required under the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) have been made in the
Notes to Financial Statements.

OBLIGATION OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT. 2013

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place your company has followed adequate Policy for prevention,
prohibition and redressalof Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace. During the year under review, the Company has
not received any complaint of harassment.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to provision of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has in place necessary Whistle
Blower/Vigil Mechanism policy to provide a formal mechanism to the directors, employees and stakeholders to report
genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected, a fraud or vielation of the Company’s Code of Conduct in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The policy provides for
adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and provides for direct access to the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The said policy is available on the website of the
Company at www.tower.net.in under the Heading About Us = Investor Relations=> Vigil Mechanism.

ANNUAL RETURN & WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of annual return in Form MGT 9 pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is attached herewith and marked as “Annexure — D" to this Report. Thesame

CONSERVATION OF _ENERGY. TECHNOLOGICAL ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:

The Company being a NBFC, does not have any manufacturing activity. Therefore the provisions of Section 134(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to our Company. There was no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year
under review.
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CORPORATE GOVYERNANCE:

The Company is exempted from compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions under Regulation 15 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 since the Company’s share capital and net worth.
was less than the specified threshold as on the last day of the previous financial year.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT :
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors confirm:-

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) That such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and such judgments and estimates have been
made that are reasonable and prudent s0 as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end
of the financial yearended 3 1st March, 2020 and of the profits/Lossof the Company for the year ended on that date;

¢) That proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) That the Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis,

e) That proper Internal Financial Controls are in place and the internal Financial Controls are adequate and operating
effectively;

f) That proper systems was devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS.
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE
There have been no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts, Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and its future operations.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY,
OCCURING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of the
financial year to which this financial statement relates and on the date of this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
The Company does not fall within purview of the Corporate Social Responsibility, as defined under the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year 2019-2020.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES:

Pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, none of the emplovees
of the Company are in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limit prescribed under rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.The statement containing the disclosure as required
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 5 (1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, together with details of top ten employees in terms
of Remuneration drawn as an 31-03-2020 is attached herewith and marked as “Annexure — E”,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

The Management Discussion and Analysis for the year under review as stipulated under Regulation 34(2) and Schedule V
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the
Listing Regulations), is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report.
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ANNEXURE — A

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Tower Investment & Trading Co. Ltd.,
“Temple Chambers”

6, Old Post Office Street,

4th Floor, Kolkata-700 001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADINGCOMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by TOWER
INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD. (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2020, according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under:

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under:

(iii)The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under:

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) ;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (as
amended from time to time);

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time to
time);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (as may
be amended from time to time); - Not Applicable as there was no reportable event;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999/ Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (as may
be amended from time to time): - Not Applicable as there was no reportable event;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 as may be amended
from time to time; - Not Applicable as there was no reportable event:

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (as may be amended from time to time): - Not Applicable as there
was no reportable event;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (as may be amended from
time to time) - Not Applicable as there was no reportable event:
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() Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares)
Regulations, 2013 (as may be amended from time to time);

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (as may be amended from time to
time); - Not Applicable as there was no reportable event;

(k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,2018; and

(I) Any other Regulations/ Rules/Notifications/ Circulars/ Amendments etc. as issued by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India from time to time;

(vi) Other laws/acts/rules as may be applicable specifically to the company:

(a) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

(b) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

(c) Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

(d) Trade Unions Act, 1926;

(e) Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923;

(f) Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952:

(g) Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948;

(h) Minimum Wages Act, 1948 and its Rules;

(i) The Factories Act, 1948 & its Rules;

(j) Pollution Control Board Clearance (Environment Protection) Act, 1986 and its Rules:

(k) Central Excise Act, 1944 and its Rules;

(1) Income Tax Act, 1961 and its Rules;

(m) Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 and its Rules:

(n) Contract Labor (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970;

(0) Profession Tax and its Rules;

(p) Shops and Establishments Act and its Rules;

(q) Industrial Disputes Act 1947 and its Rules;

(r) Service Tax Act and its Rules and its Rules;

(s) Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 & its Rules / the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 & its Rules
there under including any Circulars/ Notifications issued from time to time.

I'have also examined the required licenses specific to the company and found them duly up to date/applied for renewal.
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Mandatory Applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Uniform Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with “The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited™;

(iii) RBI Act, 1934 and Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India for Non-
Deposit taking NBFC; as specifically applicable the Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors,
Independent Directors and a Women Director.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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I further report that Company has passed special resolutions regarding appointment of Mr. Mr. Swarup Kumar Maity as a
Whole-Time Director Of The Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 14th May, 2019 pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) read with Schedule V of the
Act and rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) hereof, for the time being in force].

I further report that Company has also passed special resolutions regarding approval of transactions under Section 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 185, 186 and such other provisions, as may be applicable, including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, to make investments / acquisitions / give
loan(s) / any other form of debt to any person(s) or other body corporate(s) and / or guarantee(s) / provide any security(ies) in
connection with a loan/ any other form of debt to any other body corporate(s) or person(s) and to make investment or acquire by
way of subscription, purchase or otherwise the securities of any other body corporate(s) whether Indian or overseas, in which any
Directors are directly or indirectly deemed to be interested, up to a sum not exceeding Rs. 50 crores at any point of time, in one or
more tranches, in their absolute discretion as may be deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company.

Sd/- Rajat Kumar Jalan
Practicing Company Secretary
Place : Kolkata C.P. No: 5705
Date : 30-07-2020 ACS No.: 14895
UDIN:A014895B000530740

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

To
The Members,
Tower Investment & Trading Company Limited

As required by item 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 I certify that none of the directors on the board of Tower Investment & Trading
Company Limited have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the
SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Sd/- Rajat Kumar Jalan
Practicing Company Secretary
Place : Kolkata C.P. No: 5705
Date  :30-07-2020 ACS No.: 14895
UDIN:A014895B000530971
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ANNEXURE - B

WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR’S CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company have complied with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended 3 Ist
March, 2020.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Tower Investment & Trading Co. Ltd.

X
Mr. Swarug Kumar Maity

Place: Kolkata Whole Time Director
Date: 30th July, 2020 DIN: 01200281
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ANNEXURE - C

Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/ joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

I. SL No. |

(o8]

Name of the subsidiary: SAKET CEMENT PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED(CIN:U27310WB1988PTC045233)

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting period: N.A. (Same as of the
Holding Company)

[¥3)

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries: N.A.

5. Share capital :Rs.  3,06,000.00
6. Reserves & surplus :Rs. 69,46,925.00
7. Total assets :Rs.  73.28,365.00
8. Total Liabilities :Rs.  73,28,365.00
9. Investments :Rs.  5,68,000.00
10. Turnover :Rs.  1,53,386.00
11, Profit /(Loss) before taxation :Rs. (14,87,012.00)
12. Provision for taxation :Rs. NIL

13. Profit /(Loss)after taxation :Rs.  (13,54,791.00)
14. Proposed Dividend : NIL

15. % of shareholding : 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: N.A.

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the vear: N.A.
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PART “B”: ASSOCIATES AND JOINT YVENTURES

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

ASSOCTATES ' i}
NAME OF ASSOCIATES/JOINT KHATU INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.
_| VENTURES -
1 | Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date _ _ 31-03-2020
2 | Shares of Associate/Joint Veniures held | 45600
by the company on the year end
No. _ _
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint ' Rs.2,56,350/-
Venture :
Extend of Holding % _ 22.30%
| 3 | Description of how there is significant | Pursuant to Sec 2(6) of the Company’s Act, 2013 M/s, Khatu
influence : Investment & Trading Co. Ltd. is Associate company of M/s, Tower

Investment & Trading Company Lid.

4 | Reason why the Associate/ Joint Venture | Consolidated for the Financial Year 31-03-2020 as per MCA
is not consolidated notification df.14-10-2014

5 | Networth attributable to Shareholding as Rs. 23,866/-
per latest audited Balance Sheet

& | Profit/Loss for the year

i)  Considered in Consolidation _ Rs.(1,12467.00)
i) Not Considered in Consolidation -

1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations. N. A.

2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year . N. A.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Tower Investinent & Trading Co. Lid.

Dtl, et St

_—

3 ¢
o Swarup Kunydr Maity Protul Dutta Bijoy Kumar Sarkar
Place :Kolkata Whole Time Director Director

Date  :30-07-2020 i DIN:(1200281 DIN:07719740 DIN:00849772
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ANNEXURE -D

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration)
Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :

1 CIN ' L67120WB1981PLC033500
Registration Date L e
Name of the Company TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
Category/Sub-category of the | COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
4 Company INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT COMPANY
; Address of the Registered 6, OLD POST OFFICE STREET, 4™ FLOOR,
| office & contactdetails | KOLKATA-700 001,
6 | Whether listed company | LISTED
Name, Address & contact ALANKIT ASSIGNMENTS LIMITED
| details of the Registrar & 205-208, ANARKALI COMPLEX, JHANDEWALAN EXTENSION, NEW
7 Transfer Agent, if any. DELHI-110 055
PH. NO. : 011 42541234/23541234FAX NO.: 011 42541201
E-MAIL : rta@alankit.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY :
(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the company
products / services Product/service
I ~ Other financial service activities, 64990 53.81%
i except insurance and pension

funding activities, n.e.c.

HLPARTICULARS OF HOLDING. SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

SL Name and Address of the CIN/GLN Holding/Subsi % of Applicable
No. Company diary/ Shares Section
Associate held
1. = Saket Cement Products Pvt. Ltd. | U27310WB1988PTC045233 | Subsidiary | 100% 2(87)
2.  Khatu Investment & Trading Co. Ltd. L65993WBI1979PLC032406 | Associate | 22.80% @ 2(6)

IV. A) SHARE HOLDING PATTERN: (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
A Categary-wise Share Holding




0 : o
. /\“ A
i o S

=
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Category of No. of Sllare; held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the
Shareholders the year|As on 1°7 -April-2019] year|As on 31-March-2020)

De- | Physical | Total % of De- Physical | Total % of
mat Total mat Total

Shares ) Shares

Yo
Change
during
the year

A. Promoter s
a) Individual/ HUF - | 119592 |
b) Central Govt . _. - - -

d) Bodies Corp. = - 168812 168812 | 40.96% 168812 e _:_____'_ﬁ__g_g_l%____
e)Banks/FI . - & - '

0 4096% |

D) Any other - : ' - RN SO S U WO

of Promoter

A)1): | S SR N

2. Foreign - |
LT P S A

Total shareholding | - | 588404 | 288404 | 69.98% | 288404 | - | 288404 | 69.98% |

Individuals
b) Other — -
Individuals

dBanksFL 0 - T - - -
¢) Any other . "
Sub-total (A) (2) : -
'"'fé’ié'1""§i'{éi¥é}¥6i'a"f'ﬁg IR
of Promoter (A) =

(A) (D) +(A) 2)

288404 - 288404  69.98% |

B. Public
Shareholding

g e = :
e S B A

e) Venture Capital !
_Funds RO . A T (S -
o
Companies - -
C9Fls = e .
e Ve ._ . ——
Capital Funds | | .-'

' 1) Others (specify]mm i = . _ .
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2. Non Institutions !

ii) Overseas - 2 =
L | 123726 123726 | 3002% |  S0C
i) Individual | f
shareholders holding |
nominal share capital |
uptoRs. | lakh

i n) Individual '
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs | ' ; |
lakh . . . | . s 4 = =
Ty i | e : - . :
Sub-total(B)(2):- .. 123726 | 123726 | 30.02% 500 26 30.02% . -

Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ B)2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for ,
GDRs & ADRs A " " : . i
_____ T - FITETE FYE e | i . O AT T
(A+B+C) | |

123726 | 123726 | 3002% | 500 | 123226 | 123726 | 30.02% | -

B) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTER :

SN , Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of
Shareholder’s Name of the year the year

No. of Y of Yoof No. of Yo of Yool % change
Shares total Shares | Shares total Shares | the year in
Shares | Pledged Shares | Pledged | ghareholdi
of the | /encumb of the fencum | o during

compan ered to compan bered
¥ total ¥ to total

shares shares
: 4.88%

I | RAKESH 20100 . 4.88%

002% |
15.31%

' ANITA HIMATSINGKA 100 0.02%

3 | SHAURYA VEER | 63092 | 1531%
HIMATSINGKA
' MAALIKA
S | RAKESH KUMAR = 23800 | 577% = | 23800  S.77%
| SHAURYA VEER (HUF) | I |
6 | KHATU INVESTMENT & 64138 | 15.56% 64138 15.56%
| & TRADING CO. LTD. i ' 5
7 NEW LOOK ; | 74104 | 17.98%
| INVESTMENT
8 | BURLINGTON | 30570 | 7.42% 30570 | 7.42% 1
| INVESTMENTS  PVT. |

12500 | 3.03% | 712500 3.03%
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C) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS® SHAREHOLDING (please specify, if there is no change)

SN

Particulars

Sharecholding at the beginning

of the vear

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of % of total shares No. of % of total shares of
shares of the company shares the company
I RAKESH HIMATSINGKA
At the begmmn& of the year 20100 4.88% 20100 4.88%
fD.itc wise Increase / Decrease in | - - -
: Promoters Shareholding during the
- year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment |
________________  /transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
| Atthe end of the year - - 20100 4.88% |
2 ANITA HIMATSINGKA
! Atthe beginning of the year 100 0.02% 100 0.02%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in - . -
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): o
[ Attheend of the year z = 100 0.02%
3 SHAURYA VEER
At the begmnmg of the year 63092 15.31% 63092 15.31%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in - - - -
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
- increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): | 3
____________ end of the year - - 63092 1531% |
4 | MAALIKA HIMATSINGKA i
At the beginning of the year 12500 3.03% 12500 3.03%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Z - n --
- Promoters Shareholding during the i
- year specifying the reasons for
| increase / decrease (e.g. allotment |
: /transfer / bonus/ sweat quul\f etc.): '
..................... Attheendoftheyear T -] - 12500 3.03%
5 | RAKESH KUMAR SHAURYA
VEER (HUF) B
A egmmng of the year . 23800 3.77% 23800 5.77%
ise Increase / Decrease in | - . - s
Promoters Shareholding during the |
year specifying the reasons for |
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
| /transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year - - 23800 5.77%
6 KHATU INVESTMENT &
_ TRADING CO. LTD.
__________ At the beginning of the year 64138 15.56% 64138 15.56%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the [
|

year specifying the reasons for

i increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
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~ /transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year

64138

n
n
(=]
]
=

' NEW LOOK INVESTMENT
- (BENGAL) LTD.

~ Atthe beginning of the year B
Date wise Increase / Decrease in |

74104

17.98%

74104

17.98%

Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

74104

17.98% |

BURLINGTON INVESTMENTS
PVT. LTD.

30570

At the heommng of the year B

7.42%

30570

7.42%

Date wise Increase / Decrease in |
Promoters Shareholding during the |
year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/ftransfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

30570

7.42%

D) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS:

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the
ending of the year

No. of
shares

| % of total

| shares of the

| company

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company

GAURAB HIMATSINGKA
At the beginning of the year

T T

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specitying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/

| sweat equity etc.):

1
|02

. At the end of the year

~ VIVEK HIMATSINGKA

| At the beginning of the year

[

|'Atthe end of the year

| Atthe beginning of the year

! Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters

| Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for

. increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/
_ sweat equity etc.):

At lhe end of the year

ROHINI HIMATS[NGKA

S Increase e e
| Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for

| increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/
eat equity etc.):

DIPAK KUMAR GAURAB KUMAR (HU F)

increase decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/

At the end of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters B
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for

15000

15000

3.64%
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5 GAURAB HIMATSINGKA
the beglnmnﬂ of the year 1500

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters ; -

- Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for

| increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/ 3

Atthe cnd ofthe year -

6 ANUJ TULSYAN - ; |

| Atthe begmnmg of the year o 600

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters i -

Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for |

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/ |
Sweatequityete):
.| At the end of the year :

.-..A‘ the begmnmg ufthe .‘/‘-dT . . 1. (1
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - . =
| Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for |

| increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/ I

| sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year
8 SAMPAT DEORA
of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters .

Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for |
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/
sweat eqmty etc.):

S ’}%..

_ — 1 00 500 0.12%

! Date wise lncrease / Decrease in Promoters - . r-

' Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for |
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/
| Sweat equity etc.): S

Attheendoftheyear (-
LALITA ASHOK MATE
At the begmnmg of the year 500 0.12
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e g. allotment /transfer / bonus/

1500
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E) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MA

SN

NAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Shareholding of each Directors and each
Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the

beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the |

year

No. of
shares

% of total shares
of the company

No. of
shares

% of total shares
of the company

MRS. ANITA HIMATSINGKA

. Atthe begmnmg of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment

/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

100

At the end of the year

MATSINGKA

0.02%

100

| Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specitying the |
reasons for increase f’decrease (e g allotment

At the end of the year

. Date wise lncrease / Decrease in Promoters 5
- Shareholding during the year specifying the |
. reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment |

MR. SWARUP KUMAR MAITY

/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

| At the end of the year

| 63092

1531%

V) INDEB

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

TEDNESS (STANDALONE):

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured Loans
(STANDALONE)

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

year

lndehtedness at the beginning of the

Ay Add]tlon
% Reductlon
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial

Total (l+n+m)

Change in Indebtedness during the

i) I Interest due but not pzud

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (|+|1+|||)
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECT(ﬁ_S AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
MR. SWARUP KUMAR MAITY (WTD) _ |
| Grosssalary R -
5 (a) Salary as per provisions Rs.2,86,320/- 5 Rs, 2,86 370”

- contained in section 17(1) of the
E ncome-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Rs.33,120/- Rs.33,120/-
. Income-tax Act, 1961 ] e

4 Commlssmn

- as % of profit

|.=_others_snecify

_Rs. 3119 440’

. Total (A} ] sssauic. SRS
Ceiling as per the Act Rs,a. | 9.440,«

B. Remuneration to other Directors :

SN. | Particulars of Name of Directors | Total Amount |
Remuneration
I Independent MR. PROTUL DUTTA . MR. BIJOY KUMAR SARKAR
- Directors e |
: Fee for attending

board commiuecf

(OtherNon- 1 yipg ANITA HIMATSINGKA MR.SHAURYA VEER |

| Executive
| Diestons  HIMATSINGKA

| Fee for dttendmg
’hndrd committee

3]

- Commission

" Total Managerial

__Remuneration
- Overall Ceiling as
| perthe Act | ' 5
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERbONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD :
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SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO | cs CFO Total |
| Gross salary B - S9.000-  437388- | 496388
. (@) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the P - -
(b) Value of perquisites w's 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 | - | - :
(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, . I - -
_________ 1961 SR NS (R W
...... 2 Stock Option x ; -
3 Sweat Equity S— I
.CO_In ission R 7 =N . S I

n
o
Q
=
i
=2
@
i
ion
‘@
ien
o]
s
2
=

| Total | - 59,000 | 4,37.388/- 4.96.388/-
VIIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
|
Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty / Authority | Appeal made, —‘
Companies Description | Punishment/ Compounding | [RD/NCLT/ if any (give Details)
Act fees imposed COURT]
ishment NO PENALTIES, PUNISHMENTS OR COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Compounding

_B. DIRECTORS
 Penalty l
: NO PENALTIES, PUNISHMENTS OR COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES |

Penalty
Piinishinsii NO PENALTIES, PUNISHMENTS OR COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Compounding
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Tower Investment & Trading Co. Ltd.
%_"k( Ll ity T/j‘/gg’“ '
Swarup Kumar Maity - ‘ Protul Dutta Bijoy Kumar Sarkar
Place  : Kolkata Whole Time Director Director Director

Date  :30-07-2020 DIN:01200281 DIN:07719740 DIN:00849772



TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

CIN : L67120WB1981PLC033500
Registered Office :
‘Temple Chambers’ 6, Old Post Office Street, 4™ Floor, Kolkata-700 001
Phone No.: 033 2230-7373/2248-3854
E-mail: tower_investment@yahoo.comWebsite : www.tower.net.in

ANNEXURE -E

TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN AS ON 31-03-2020

Sl. Name of Designatio | Remuneration Nature of Qualificatio | Date of The age of | The last The Wheth
No employee n of received employme n and commence such employ | percenta | erany
employee P.A. hn:,h expt:n;l:nce rnelnt of employee ment ge of such
whether of the employme ;
contractual employee pntv Heldy AU em;:lloy
or such shares eeisa
otherwise employe held by | relative
e before the of any
joining | employe | directo
the ein the ror
company | company | manag
within er of
the the
| meaning | compa
' of ny and
clause(iii if so,
) of sub- | name
rule(2) | of such
directo
ror
manag
' K er
1 | Mr. Goutam Chief Rs.4,37,388/- Permanent B. A. | 01-11-1987 58 Years = ] s -
Kumar Das Financial 33 Years |
Officer
2 Mr. Swarup Whaole- Rs.3,19,440/- Permanent B. Com 01.05.2019 53 Years - %
Kumar Maity Time 26 Years
Director
3 | Mrs. Computer | Rs.1,63,486/- | Contractual B. Com 01-04-2016 | 37 Years : - o
KhusbuKanoria | Operator 13 Years ) |
4 | Ms. Varsha Jain | Company Rs.59,000/- Permanent | C.5. 01-01-2020 | 28 Years % 5
Secretary 5 Years
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management of the Company is pleased to present Management Discussion and Analysis Report (to the extent applicable to
the company) covering overall performance and outlook of its activities.

The Company is a registered non deposit taking NBFC, registered with the RBI since 16th February, 2006. Since then, Company
has been operating successfully under overall superintendence, directions and regulation of the regulatory authority.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT

So far, non-banking finance companies (NBFCs) have scripted a great success story. Their contribution to the economy has grown
in leaps and bounds. With the ongoing stress in the public sector banks due to mounting bad debt, their appetite to lend (especially
in rural areas) is only going to deteriorate, thereby providing NBFCs with the opportunity to increase their presence. The success
of NBFCs can be clearly attributed to their better product lines, lower cost, wider and effective reach, strong risk management
capabilities to check and control bad debts, and better understanding of their customer segments.

Going forward, the latent credit demand of an emerging India will allow NBFCs to fill the gap, especially where traditional banks
have been wary to serve. Additionally, improving macroeconomic conditions, higher credit penetration, increased consumption
and disruptive digital trends will allow NBFC’ s credit to grow at a healthy rate over the next five years. Clearly, NBFCs are here
to stay.

NBFC REGULATIONS

Over the past several decades, NBFCs have emerged as important financial intermediaries, particularly for the small-scale and
retail sectors, in underserved areas and unbanked sectors. NBFCs have turned out to be growth engines in an arena where
increased importance is assigned to financial inclusion. The growing importance of the NBFC segment in the Indian financial
system has led to a changing landscape of the NBFC framework. The evolution of the regulatory framework for NBFCs in India
has gone through a cyclical phase-from simplified regulations to stringent and extensive regulations and finally towards
rationalisation as part of the recently revised NBFC regulatory framework.

THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND ITS IMPACT

The unprecedented outbreak of COVID-19 impacted the global economy and human life. making it a very challenging
environment for all the businesses. The changes forced on people and businesses by the pandemic are likely to last for some time
and established ways of doing business may undergo changes leading to new ways of working.

The Covid-19 global pandemic gathered momentum in India in March 2020. Early protective measures by the Indian government
to contain the health emergency in January were ramped-up, culminating into a strict nationwide lockdown starting 25 March
2020.Although economic activity has gradually resumed since mid-May, it is still operating below pre- Covid levels, with
considerable uncertainty on the time to normalcy.

This crisis facing the world is unique in terms of the quantum of output loss as countries restricted mobility and economic activity
to contain spread of the virus. Besides, there is severe uncertainty around the duration and intensity of the crisis, which will have a
huge impact on the global economy.

The Company was able to successfully manage immediate challenges of re-establishing normalcy in business operations and is in
the process of assessing the long-term implications and opportunities that may emerge from this situation,

The Company’ s assessments, strategies and prospects outlined in this report are to be read in the context of the evolving
situation.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS
The Company constantly examines the opportunities and threats that exist in the business and accordingly plans to exploit the
opportunity available for going forward as well as equipped to handle threats.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE
The Company operates under a single segment and hence product-wise performance is not provided.

OUTLOOK, RISK AND CONCERN
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The current economic state, fears of recession and challenging retail environment, pose new threats to businesses across all
sectors. The Country wide lockdowns and the “New Normal” may lead to fundamental shift in market behavior. The Company is
strategically positioned to harness the present challenges. The Company constantly manages monitors and reports on the principal
risk and uncertainties that can have an impact on the Company. Your directors keep a close watch on the risk prone areas and take
actions from time to time.

REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has internal control system which, in the opinion of the Management, is commensurate with the size and activities
of the company. The System is also reviewed from time to time.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
This section is covered in the Director’s Report under the section of financial results and operation.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The company always regards human resources as its most valuable asset and continuously evolves pol process to attract and retain
its substantial pool of managerial resources through friendly work environment that encourages initiatives by individuals and
recognizes their performance.

The total number of people employed in the organization as on 31.03.2020 was 4 as compared to 4 as on 31.03.2019.

Details of significant changes in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations:
Financial Ratios for standalone financials

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2020 | Year Ended 31.03.2019 |

Debtors Turnover

[Net Credit Sales / Average Accounts Receivable] NIL NIL

Inventory Turnover

[Cost of Goods Sold / Average Inventory] NIL NIL

Interest Coverage

[Earning Before Interest & Taxes / Interest Expenses] NIL NIL

Current Ratio

[Current Assets / Current Liabilities] 0.04 0.05

Debt Equity Ratio

[Total Liabilities / Total Shareholders’ Equity] 0.08 0.10

Net Profit Margin (%) '

[Net Profit / Revenue] (490.74%) (212.31%)

Return on Net Worth (%)

[Profit after tax / Average Equity Capital and Other Equity] (16.23%) (8.17%)
CAUTIONARY NOTE

Statement in the Management Discussion & Analysis, describing the company's objectives, projections and estimates are forward
looking statement and progressive within the meaning of applicable laws & regulations. Actual result may vary firom those
expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect the company ' s operations are significant changes in political
and economic environment in India, tax laws, RBI regulations, exchange rate fluctuation and other incidental factors.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Tower Investment & Trading Co. Ltd.

. . | Rl £ s
‘S C éﬂiﬂ‘.{ «{“ﬂ _D_H_,,i:’f
AV . v
Swarup Kumdr waf' . Protul Durta Bijoy Kumar Sarkar
Place : Kolkata Whole Time Director Director Director
Date : 30-07-2020 DIN:01200281 DIN:07719740 DIN:00849772
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Fo the Members of Tower Invest
Report on theFinancial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanyin

iment & Trading Company Limited .

g financial statéments‘ of M/s. Tower Investment &

Trading Company Limited (“thg Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31

March, 2020, the Statement of Profit

Cash Flows for the year then ended, afnd notes to the financial statements, including a summary

~ of significant accounting policies and

Tn our opinien and to the best of our it
afore said financial statements give the

sther explanatory information.
|
\formation and according to the explanations given to us, the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and

give a true and fair view in con‘rorm}ty with the accounting principles generally accepted in India

including Indiar Accounting Standardb

1( Ind-AS?) specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state

of affairs of the Company as at 31 Margh, 2020, and its Loss ,changes in equity and its cash flows for

the year ended on that date.

_ Basis for Opinion

We con.ducted our audit in accordance
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,

fwith the Standards on Aunditing (SAs) specified under section
ar responsibilities under those Standards are further described

in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for thq Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We

_are independent of the Company in adcordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
‘Chartered Accountants of India (¢ IC/\I’&

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our

audit of the financial statements undcr the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules

thereunder, and we have fulfilled o

. requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we
for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial

The Company’s Board of Directors is!
comprises the information included

i

ar other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
i
| .
have obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
il
Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
{i ' '

responsib]e for the other information. The other information

: L]in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
_ statements and our auditor’s report thergon. C

Our opinion on the financial statements} does not cover the other information and we do not express

I
any form of assurance conclusion theregh.

In connection with our audit of the
information and, in deing so, consider

financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other -

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

the ﬁndnual stateroents or our know]ed 1) obtamed in the audit or othervwse appeats to be matena[]y

and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of

FD - 148, SALT LAKE,
KOLKATA — 700106.
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|

Chartered Accountants

"~ DBASU & CO.

|
|
i
|
|

Responsibility of Management for the Finanecial Statementis

. responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the finahcial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accgunting principles generally accepted in India, including the

accounting Standards specified under
maintenance of adequate accounting
safeguarding of the assets of the Cqg

section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
mpany and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application jof appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting

implementation and maintenance of]

_policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of thefinaiicial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to f

In preparing the financial statements,
to continue as a going concern, disclos

to cease operations, or has no realisfic:

Tlose Board of Directors are also re
process. . :

Faud or error.

anagement is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
ing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

_the going concern basis of accounting 13%[’[1685 management either intends to ligquidate the Company or
al

ternative but to do so.

sponsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
are free from material misstatement, wh

' assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
ether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable ﬂSSU[;%I]CE is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with S

s will always detect a material misstatement when 1t exisis.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordante with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintainprofessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of mate
fraud or error, design and perform a

rial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
ndit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropridte to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting

a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentionall omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal ¢
that are appropriate in the circumstance
also responsible for expressing our opi
controls system in place and the operat:

= Evaluate the appropriateness of ace

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

yntrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
5. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
ion on whether the company bas adequate internal financial
g effectiveness of such contrals.

FD-— 148, SALT LAKE,
KOLKATA — 700106.
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*

based on the audit evidence obtained
conditions that may cast significant dou
we conclude that a material uncertain
report to the related disclosures in the
modify our opinion. Our conclusions a;
anditor’s report. However, future events
a going concern. '

» Evaluate the overall preseutation, sty

anagement’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
bt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
'y exists, we are required te draw attention in our auditor’s
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
re based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
or conditions may caunse the Company to cease to continue as

ucture and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify durmg our audit.

We also provide those charged with gO\ ernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding indeper
other matters that may reasonably be
related safeguards.

dence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

From the matters communicated with thiose charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance m the aud

t of the financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit maiters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be ¢
of doing so would reasonably be €

ommunicated in.our report because the adverse consequences
xpected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

Report on Other Legal 4nd Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,. 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central

A”, a statement on the matters specified

" Government of Tndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure

in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. -

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought énd obtained all

the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)in our opinion, proper books of acco unt. as required by law have been kept by the'Company so far
as it appears from our examination of thbse books;

(¢} the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, statement of changes in equity and the cash ﬂow

statement dealt with by this Report are i

n agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards spesified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with

Rule 7 of the Companies (Aucounls) Rules, 2014, PSU O,
ol S\

FD - 148, SALT LAKE,
KOLKATA - 700106.
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() on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31*March 2020 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31%March 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the other matters tq
requirements of section 197(16) of the 4

remuneration, if any, paid by the comp
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(g) with respect to the adequacy of {
statements of the Company and the

separate report in “Annexure B”; and

) be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance thh the
\ct, as amended:

iformation and according to the explanations given to us, the

any to its directors during the year is in accordance with the

he internal financial controls with reference to financial
¢ operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our

{h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
and according to the explanations given

i. the Company does not have any pendi

Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
1O us:

ng litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. the Company does not have any material foreseeable fosses on Iong term contracts including

derivative contracts which would impac

L its financial position;

iii. there were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 30" July,2020

UDIN:- 200<K.C2 OARA BH 221!

~ For D.Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountarits
- " (Firm Registration No.301111E)

_A?LM Qecryon. Maric
(Ashis Ranjan Maitra)

PARTNER
Membership No. 656520

3
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’® Report

The Anaexure referred to in Independ ent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the
financial statements for the year ended 31%March 2020, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company is maintdining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situatiox? of fixed assets.
]

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, all the assets have not been
physically verified by the managemenl during the year but there is a regular program of
verification, which in oup opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the

. Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The immovable properfy un}der Fixed Assets is held in the name of the company.
: !
(ii) There is no inventory in the Company.
: ! :
. ’ ! '
iii)- The Company has granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the reglbter mamtamed under section 189 of the Act. Therefore, (a),(b) and (¢) of
3(iii) of the companies (Audlt()ls s Report) order ,2016 are not applicable to the company,
. i
iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
« has complied with the prowsu)m of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees and securities made by the company.
e . s
= v) In our opinion and according 10 the information and explanations given to us, the Company
_ has not accepted any deposits w1thm the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,
® : 2013 Act and the Companies (Aicceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

vi) The Central Government. has n%ot prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the.:i'services rendered by the Company.
:

vii) (a) Accordlng to the records of the company, the company is generally regular in
“depositing with appropr[ate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insiirance,income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, v:alue added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, and no such statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial
year under review for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. -

i

(b)According to the mformatlon and explanations given to us, there are no dues of

income-tax, sales-tax, Wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value

[0

- added tax and cess, as app][cable which have not been deposited on account of any
- _ dlspute ;

- viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks,
5 government or debenture holders during the yeat.

- i) The Company did not raise a?uy money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) arid term loans during the year under review,

}

1
;
!
|
3
i
{
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& x)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
) Company or on tle Company by its officers or employeeq have been noticed or 1ep0rted
during the year.

xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, tho Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requlszte approvats mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read
‘with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013.

| .

xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

is not a nidhi company. ;
. [

Xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial staternents as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv) According to the information land explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

xv) - According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our eéxamination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him.

]

xvi} The Company has a Non Ba:nkm g Financial Company and registered under section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

For D.Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration No,301111E)

Place: Kolkata Ashica Ravagornn Matze,

Dated: 30" July,2020 (Ashis Ranjan Maitra)
UDIN - Qaﬂ;é;ﬁﬁ/’r&# pH 23 Lf PARTNER
T Membership No. 036320




| . D BAS U & C'O- | | FD ~ 148, SALT LAKE,

ey, a

Chartered Accountants ' KOLKATA — 700106.

Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Reporl

Sl gt

Report on the Internal Fmam:lal Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audlted the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tower Investment &
Trading Company Limited ,(“the Company™) as of 31*March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for ]'_nt(:ernal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is resb’onsib]e for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI"). These responmbdﬂzes include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effeotwely for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of ifs business, 111c1ud1ng adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparatlon of reliable ﬁna:ucml information, as required under the
Compames Act, 2013,

-Aud_ltors Responsibility

__ Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
= of Internal Financial Controls over Fmancm] Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
' Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Intema.l Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable jassurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established! cmd mamhmed and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects. ' S

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over fi nancna] reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over ﬁnanmél repor[mg included obtaining an understanding of internal

financial- controls over financial reporbmg, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks

of material misstatement of the ﬁnanmaf statements, whether due tofraud or er ror..

> We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a basis
- fer our audit opinion on the Company ] mtcmal financial controls system over financial TePOZHAEES
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intemnal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reportmg includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principies, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

~made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)

provide reasonable assurapce regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Tnherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal finaneial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or frand may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at 31*March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For D.Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration No.301111E)

) QM*HM Meilin
(Ashis Ranja.n Maitra)

PARTNER
Membership No, 056520

Place Kolkata
Dated: 30™ July,2020.
UDIN :- 966420 ﬁrﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%t&
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TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
CIN; L67120WB1981PLC033:>00 g

i

- Registered Office :

“Temple Chambers’ 6, Old Post Office Street, 4th Floor, Kolkata-700 001

St1teme|1t of. Asseta and leblltles as on 31st Warch 2020

Note No. As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019  As at 01.04. 2018

(ASHIS RANJAN MAITRA) R

Partner

Membership No. 056520
Place : Kolkata

Date :30Th July 2020

MENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

i
Chief Financial Officer

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD,

Company Secretary

=. > Particulars
ASSETS
Financial Assets 4 . _
Cash and Cash Equivalents i 4.1 21,760,478 10,92 666 36,49,289
Receivables 4,2
- Trade Reccivables i 42.1 - - -
- Other Receivables i 4.2.2 3,45,008 53,853 11,72,959
Loans 4.3 1,21,02,700 1,31,02,700 2,02,700
Investments i 4.4 ©3,56.02,932 4,51,19,499 6,36,16,230
Other Financial Assets 3 4.5 1,41,69G 10,500 3,12,021
] 5_,03,68,808 5.93,79,218 6,89,33,199
: i
Nen-Financial Assets : 3 _
Current Tax Assets (Net) t 1 5.1 1,18,801 15,38,489 18,80,422
Property, Plant and Equiprent 3.2 - - -
Other Non-Financial Asscts 5.3 3,54,000 4,720 -
i 472,801 15,43,209 18,800,422
;Tota] Asscts 5,08,41,609 - 6,09,22,427 7,08,33,621
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Finaneial Liabilitics : 6
Deposits ; 6.1 - - -
Other Financial Liabilitics : 62 1,49,310 2,76,406 40,73,830
; ' ' 1,49,310 2,76,406 40,73,830
Non-Financial Liabilities 7 _ :
Provisions i 71 4,356,603 4,15,103 4,71.287
_ = Deferred T'ax Liabilities (Net) : 72 29,65,213 48.19,128 62,78,567
) {Other Non-Financial Liabilitics 73 11,920 14,880 23,247
34,33,736 52,49,111 47,73,101
Equity E 8
Equity Sharc Capital 8.1 41,21.300 41,21,300 41.21,300
Other Cyuity 8.2 4.31,37,263 - 5,12.,75,610 3,58,65,390 .
4,72,58,563 5,33,96,910 5,99,86,690
Total Liabilities and Equity 5508;41,609 6,09,22,427 7,08,33,621
- N = - 3
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting PO]ICICS 1&2 = =
First Time adoption of Ind AS 3 < i-;__z-
Accompanying notes to the financial statements . 4t019 f_;
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the accounts. : =
In terms of our report of even dale altached herewith, < -~
= . :f H
' . f = a
For D. Basu & Co. TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD. § §
~ Chartered Accountants i e
- Firm Registration No. 301111E  {f* | "y = z
A . R 7, - Wrole-Time Dirsctor £ =
] . - I O
-47/% Q\M]mﬂ Mmtuc_ m“\uO/QDDQ.Ef . =

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

Eotd 4

PiN:arzt9 140

i

Diractor
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- TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

+CIN: L67120WB1981FLC03‘350(}

Py

“Temple Chambers’ 6, Ol Post Office Street, 4th Floor, Kolkata-700 0¢1

Registered Office :

STATEMENT OQF PROF‘IT & L.OSS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

;E’Parﬁcu[ars ' Notes 2019 2020 2013-2019
e - ? 3 - -
.. Revenue [rom Operations -~ - ! o
Tmerest on T.oans 8,82,904 59,392
ZProfiton Sale of Tnvesiments (Nek) 325929 8.48.626
Dividend Income 342 850 3,12214
"Total Revenee from Operations N 15,51,683 12,20,232
Other Income _ 10
Service Charges : - 10,00,000-
O[hgrs 10.1 145731 -
145,731 10,010,000
Total Tncome 16,997,414 22.20,232
Expenses 33
et loss on fair value changes 1.1 97.49.068 80,30,992
Employee Benefits Expenses 1.2 9.84.738 19,04,847
Depreciation and amertization expenses - -
Olhers expenses 113 5.06.363 19,94,023
Total Expenses 1,12,40,169 1,19,29,862
Profit Before Exceptional [tems & Taxes {95,42,755) {97,09,630)
Add : Exceptional Ttems
Uneclaimed liability Written Back i . - 39,587,948
Profit Before Tax (95,42,755) {57,21,682)
Tax Expcrsc: 12
a) Current Tax - 447472
by Delbrred Tax {18,97.452) {(14,55,344)
¢} Larlier year 6,584,641 -
(12,12,821) {16,07.872)
Profit/(L.oss) for the Year {83,29,934) (47,13,810)
= Other Comprehensive Income
“ Items that will not e reclassified to profit or loss
- Changes in fair value of Bquily & Other Financial Instmmcnts 2,32.500 -
- Tax Expense relating to above item (43,547} 4,096
« "Other Comprehensive lncome for the Year 1,588,953 4,056
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (81.40,981) (47,09,714)
{Prafitt Orher Comprehensive Income) i
Earnings Per Ilquity Share 13
Basic & Diluied ) (20213 (11.43) .
Carporate [nformation & Significant Accounting Policies’ 1&2
First Time adoption of Ind AS : 3
Accompanying notes to the financial statements _ 41019

The Noles rolerred 1o above form an integral part of the accounts.
In tenns of our report of even-date allached herewith.

For D. Basu & Co.
Chartered Accounfants

Firm Registration No. 3011111

b QM o Meilin

(ASHIS RANJAN MA

JLartner

Membership No. 0565210

Place : Kollaita

Date : 30Th July 2020

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.
~ _

Whole-Time Director
CLIPENT DIRDOZE |

TOWER INVESTENT & TRADING CO.LTD. 1R INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

Sk Botul L1 -

Chief Financial Officer
‘ o # Diraclor

hri
FONER IVESTHENT & TRADIN? C0. LTD.

7 ’
/ Dirantor

N QO @4?7?2

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.
Vondha, Tnis

Compuny Secretary



TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCII, 2020

Financial Year

Financial Year

Increase / (Decrease) in Short term borrowings
Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase / (Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at béginning of the yedr
Cash and Cash Equivalents at cnd of the year

i

10,00,000

10,83,812

10,92,666
~ 21,76,478

For D. Basu & Co.

Chartered Accountants
PIFM KegIsIranon Ng. JULL11E,

Kb Rovofors M

{ASHIS RANJAN MAITRA)

Partner

Place : Kolkata

Membership No. 056520

Date : 30Th July 2020

R PPN 04‘2059.-2(
TOWER INVESTMENT 4 TRADNG COLTD. 16,00 iVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.
é’ I )M - y
Retil Ludh .

For and Behalf of Board of Directors

E Farticulars Ended, 2020 Ended, 2019
A, Cash Flow frem Operating Activities ) ’
. Protit Before Tax (95,42,755) {57,21,682)
= Adijustroenis for ;
' Txceptional Tiems - (39,87,948)
Provisions for Grataily 44,134 63,750
" Dividend Income (3.42,850) (312,214
{Liabilities)/Assets Written Off - 500,000
Profit on Sule of Investment (3,25,92%) {8.,48,620)
Net Change in Fair Market Value 97,49,068 80,30,992
Interest Received . _ : : 8.82,904) (39,392
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (13,01,236} (23,35,120)
Movements in Working Capital ;
{ncrease) / Decrcase in Financial & Other Assels {7,71,625) 14,15,907
TInerease /A Deergase) in Financial & Other Liabilities/Provisions (1,30,056) 1,282,157
€Cash Generated from / (used in) OQperations (22,02,517) {7.37,056)
Direet Taxes Paid (net of refinds) i 7,35,047 ) {1,05,539)
Net Cash flow from / (used in) Operating Activitics ' (14.67,870)  (8,42,595)
. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale Proceeds fromt Sale of Non- Current Investments - -
Sale Proceeds from Sale of Current Investiments 1,33,25,928 3,37.18,289
Purchase of Non- Current Invesimenis {1,30.00,000} (2,29,03,923) .
Tnterest Received 8.82,904 59,392
Dividend Income 3,42.850 3,12,214
Net Cash from / (ssed in) Investing Activities ' 15,51,682 1,11.85,973
C. Cash Flow irem Financing Activities )
Incredse / (Decrease} in Long-torm loans and advances 10,600,000

(1,29,00,000)

(1.29,00,000)

(25.36,623)

36,459,289

10,92.666

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING €O, LTD.

4
"~ Whole-Tima Dirsclor

Lo}

Chilef Financial Officen

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD

T
Company Secretary

Director

Din OFFI9740

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

ca

Dirsctor

PIN 00849772



TLMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

67120WB1981PLC033500
~ Regigtered Office :

TOWTR INY
CIN: |

“Temple Chambers? 6, Old Posi Olfice Street, 4th Fleor, Kolkata-700 001

Significant Accounti

Polici

By,

1

El

ity E

2.(

2.3

. nssessed

General Informition

Tower Investment & Trading Compaby Limited {the ‘Company’) is a public limited Compaty, incorporated and domiciled
in India. The equity shares of the Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock exchange. The registered oftice of the
Compaty 1s located at ("Temple Chamber), 6 Old Post Office Sireet4th Floor | Kolkats 700001, West Bengal, India,

The Company is mainly engaged in real estaic activity and investinent in shares and securities,

The functional and presentation curréney of the Company is Indian Rupee (“TNR”} which
ceunontG environment in which-the Company operalcs.

The financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 were approved by the Beard o
issue on 30 th July 2020.

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its Aunenc
Such agcounting policics have been applicd consistently to all the puriods presented in thy
otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation
i Compliance with Ind AS ] .
These finemcial statements have beén prepared to comply in all material asy
Standards {Ind AS}) notified under Scelion 133 of the Comparies Act , 2013 (
Agconnting Slandards ) Rules, 2015 and Companies { Indian Avcounting Standal
- und other relevant provisions of the Aet,

is the currency of the primaty

if Directors and duthorised for

al statements are lisled below,
s¢ financial staiements unless

poots with Indian Accounting
the Act), Companies { Tndian
ds ) Amendment Rules, 2016]

The Company had been preparing its financial stalciments upto the year 31 Murch 2019, as per Companies
{Acoounling Standard) Rules, 2006 and other relevant provisions of the Act (herginafier referred to as Previous

GAAPIndian GAAP),

These financial statements are the firsl financial statements of the Company wm
of how the iransition frum previons GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Compeny’
performance and cash flows. ‘

it) Classification of current and nop - current
’ Al] assets and labilities have been elassified as eurrent or non -cnrent as per thy

der Ind AS. for an explanalion
& financial position | financial

Company's normal opsrating

cycle nd other criteria set out in the Ind AS1- Presentation of Financial Statefnents and Schedule TI to the
Campanies Act, 2013. Based on the nalurc of product / service and the time hetiveen the acquisition of assels

lot processing and theit realisation in cash and cash equivalents , the Company

has ascertained its operating

cycle as 12 months for the purpose of curment / non - current élassification of assets and Habilities.

Hi} Clagsification of current and ron - current

Thebe financial statements have been prepered in accordance with the gdnerally’ accepted accounting

pringiples in India under the historical cost convention cxcept for the following :

Estimuies of uncertainilies relating to the G]obél health pandemic from COVID-19

The Company has considered the possible clfects that may result from the pandemic relating

o COVID-19 on the camying

amounis of receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relaling to the
possibie future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of

approval of these financial statements has used mternal and exlemal sources of informaiion
related information, economic torecasts, The Company has performed sensitivily analysis
based on current estimates expeels the carmying amount of these assets will be recovercd. Thd
Company’s financial statements may differ from that estimated. as at the date of approval of 11

Use of estimates and critical acconnting judgcmcn'ts
In preparation of the financial slatements. the Company makes judgments, estimatcs and ass

inchrding credit feports and
n the assumptions used and
impagt of COVID-19 on the
ese financial sialements.

wmptions about the carmying

amounts of assets and liabilitics that are not veadily apparént from ofher sources. The estimates and lhe associated

assutaptions are based on historival experience and other factors that are considered to be
dilfer from these estimates.

The estimales and the underlying assumptions are 1eviewed an an ongeing basis. Revisiony|
recogntised in the period in which the estimate is revised and fubore periods affectad.

This note pro\ficEes an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or cun
arg more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumption furning out 10 be d

1} Estimated fair value of unlisted securities
ii} Recognition- of deferred tax assels [or carried forward tax tosses

relevant. Aclual resulis may
o accounting gstimales are

aplexity , and of ilems which
ifferent than those originally
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Property , Plané & Equipment
All items of property , plant and aquipment are stated at histerical cost less depreciation . Hislorical cost includes

expendifire that is directly atéributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subsequettt costs are included in the assets catrying amount or recognised as p separate asset, as appropriate , only when it
is probale that firwe economic benefits associated with the tbem will flow e ihe company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The earrying anount of any component acconnted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and mainiznance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurrcd,

Depreciation Iz provided :!n: Writtenn down wvalue method over the estimated useful lives of the assefs. Pursuant to
Motitication of Schedule T of the Companigs Aet, becoming effective | the Company has adopted the useful lives as por the
lives specified for the respective tixed assets in the Schedule O of the Compamies Act, 2013,

 Gains and losses on digposal of propernty, plant and equipments recognised in the statement of protit and loss.

An impairnent loss is recopnised where applicable when the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Transition ip ITnd A8 ) ' _

On transition to Ind AS | the Company has elected (o continue with the carrying value of all of ils property, planl and
couipmend recognised as at 01 April, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP and vse thal carrying value ag (he deemed
casl efall the property , plant and cquipment .

Financial lnsiraments

Financial asscts and financial labilitics are recogmised when the Company becomes a parly Lo the eontraciual provisions of
ihe instrument. Financial asscls and liabililies are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that ate directly
atfributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
linbilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
[imameiul assel or financial lability, The transection costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finaneial assets and
financial liabililies af fair valuc through profit and loss are immediately recognised in (he statement of profit and loss.

Effective interest method

The effective inlerest methad is a methed of calenlating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest inpome or expense over the relevent period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactty discounts feture cash
recelpts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriale, a shorter perfod.

i) Finanecial Assets )
The financial assets are classified in the following categories:
&) Financial assets measored at amoriised cost,
b} financial asscls measured al fair value through profil and loss ( FVTPL), and
o) finaneial assets measured at fair value throuph other comprehensive income { FYOCT).
The classitleation of financial assets depends on the Company's business model for managing fi nancial assets
 and the conjractual terms of cash tlow,

Fi inl azacts suréd at amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of conlractual cash flows where those Jows represent solely pavinents of

prncipal and interest are measurcd at amoriised coast. Adler mitisl measurcment , such fnancial asscls arc
subsequently measured at amortised coast using the cffective inlerest rale mothod . The losses atising Trom
impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

‘I'tade receivables are recognised initialty at fair vafue and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
_ effective iterest mathod less provision for impainuent, if my.

Finaneial instroments measured at FYTPL
Finaneial instruments ingluded wilhin FYTPL category are measured inittally as well as al cach reporling
periodd al Gur value plus iransaction costs as applicable. Fair value movemenls are recorded in Statement of

I'inancia? assets at FYOCL

Financial assets are measured at FVOCL if thess finomeial assets are held within a business modzl wliosc
objeetive is aclhicved by bolh collecting contraciual cash Nows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specitied dates to cash flows that are solety payments of principal and
interest bn the principal amount outstanding.

Equity instruments

Thiz company measures all equity investments at fair vahoe. The Company's management has slected to present
fair value gain and insses on equity instruments in other comprehensive fncome |, and accordingly there is no
subsequent reclassification of thir value gains and losses to profit or foss. Dividends from such investing
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Ie- recognition of firancizl assets
All investmenis otlier than those disclosed otherwise are carried at cost less accumulated impairment Josses, if
any. Where an indication of inpafrment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and is written

The coinpany de- recopmises & financial asset when the contractual rights 10 the cash flows for the financial
down immediately to its recoverable amount, On disposal of such investments, the difterence between net

assets expires or it iransier the financial assets and such transter qualifies for de- recognition under Ind AS 104

Findneial instruments,
disposal proceeds and the cﬁnying amgunts are recognized in the Statemen! of Profit and Loss
The Company assess on a forward ]n'nking basis the expected crodif losses associated with its assefs carried at
amaoitised cost. The impairment methodology applicd dopends on whether there has been a significant increase

Impairment of financial assets
g=t
Only for Trade recetvables | the implicd approach of 1ife time expected credit losses is recogniscd from imitinl

recogmilion of the receivables as required by Ind AS 109- finaneial instruments
Impairment loss allowance recnumsedj reversed durmn the year is charged / wiitten hack to Statement of

. i)
Financial liabitities are measured at amortised cost nsing the effective intorest method
Borrowings are imitially recopnised at fair valuc , net of tmansaction costs incurred . Borrowitgs are
" ‘a -

Profit & Loss.
Tinancial liabilities )
subscquently measured at amortised cost, Any difTerence between the proceeds [ net of transaction cosls) and
the redemption amount is recognised in profit or Joss over the periad of the borrowings using effective interest
Bemowings aie classified as current liabilities unless the company has an wnconditionsl right to defer
settlement of the lighility for at Teast 12 wmonths after the reporting peried Where there is a breach of 2
saletial provision of a fong term loan arrangement on or bulore the end of the reporting period with the effect
that the Tiabilily becomes payiment on demand on the reporting daic , the entity doss not classify the liability as
curent , if the lender agreed, after the teporting period and befbre the approval of the financial statement for
. the earrying amount

issue , not to demand payinent 4s a cunsequence of the breach,
Tor Trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balunce sheet date

approximates Bur value to shori- term matyrity of these instrumenis

The Company derccognises financial liabilities when, and only when. ihe Company's ebligations are

Derecopmition of financial lishiltties
discharged, cancelled or they expire

its
Shari-lerm obligations
=l » 3

Employee benefits
Lisbilitics for wages, salaries and other benefits that are expecled to be settled wholly within 12 months after

the end of the period inwhich the employees render the related service arc recognisod in respect of employess
services up to the end of {he reporting period and are measured at the amopunis expecicd to be paid when the

liabilities are settled. The tiabilities arc presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

The, Company makes contribations to government administered provident fund scheme, emnployee stale
insurance scheme and pension furd scheme for ithe cmployees. The Company has no further payment
-

16
fa}
) { Tost employment obligations
Defined contrilutien plang
s o] & = =)
abligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions arc accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recopnised as employes benefit expense when they are due
Compensated abseices
Accmpulated compensaled absences and gratuity liability, which are expected fo be availsd or encashed or
eontribuicd within the 12 months fom the end of the year are trealed as short term employee benefits and the
balances expeeled tw be availed or encashed or contributed beyond 12 months from the yesr end are treated as
Jong terin hiability and are accounted on undiscounted basis
Other short term employee benefits
Short term emplovee henefits are recognised as an cxperiges as per the Company's schemes based on the
expected obligation on an yndiscaunted basis
2.7 Provisions *
Provisions are recognised in the hatance sheet when the Comipany has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a resuli
of a past event, which is expected to result in an oulllow of resources embodying ezonomic benetlts which can be relinbly
< estimated. Ezch provision iz based an the best estimate of the expenditure required ta settle the present obligation,
balance sheet date
E
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2.9

210

211

2.13

2.15

Income taxes
Lhe IMEOME 1eX eXPEnse oF Credit K0T the NCriod 15 the tax payamc OO e CWTENE PEMOY s laxable 1Come pased on the

applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusied by clianges jn deferred tax assets and labilities attributable lo
temporary differences and to unused tax lossés.

The current income tax charge i calculated on the basis of the tax laws cnacted or substantively enactad at the end of the
reporting periad,

Delerred income iax is provided in full, using the Hability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their catrying amouonts in the financial statements,

Deferred income fax is determined using tax rates (nd laws) that have heen enseted or substariially eoacted by the end of
the reporting peried and are expected to apply when the related deferred income Lux asset is realised or the deferred income
tax l]ab;]m 15 settled,

Deferred (ax assets arg recognised for all deductible temporary ditferences and unused tax losses ouly i it is probable that
tuture taxable amounts will be availuble to utilise those temporary differcnices and losses.

Delerred tax asset® and liabilitfes are ofFscl when there is a legally enforceable rght to offset current tax assefs and
ligbiiities and when the deferred tax balances relaic to the same {axalion authority. Current lax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right o offset and intends cither to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultancousky,

Current and deferred tax is repognised i profit or loss, exeept to the extent that it relates to fems recoymised in other
comptrehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 1ecoznised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equily, respactively.

Revenue
Fevenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable ihat the economic bcneﬁts will flow to the Company and ihe revenue

can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payraent is being made. Revenue is measurcd at the fair value of the
considerition recejved or receivable net of discounts, taking into account conltactually defined terms and excluding taxes
or dulics vollected on behalf of the government.

The Company basis {13 ¢stimate on historical results taking into consideration the type of cusiomers, the type of
tramsactions and the specifics of each arTangelnenls

Iacome recogaition
a} Rezl Esate Activities
Revenue in respect of real estate aclivily are recoguised when it can be measured reliably and the a1gmhcant
") Inicresi income
. Intercsl income s accrucd om a fime proporhon basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the
eftective interest rate applicable.

) Service Ineome
Income from service is tecogmised when the service has been rendercd as per terms of the contract,

d} Dividend Income
Dividend income from ivestments is recognised when the shareholder's rights to receive payment have boen

estabiishad,

Segment reporting
Sinee, the Company doesnot have any rcporimg seyement in its business line and Company is engaged in smf,lc. segement

of'Operalion hence no Seginent reporting is applicable to it.

Earnings per share
Eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year aftributable to- ‘equity share holders, by the

weighted average numbers of equity sharés outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of caleulating diluled earnings per share, the net profil or loss for fiie period attributable to equity
shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period zre adjusied for the effects of all
dilutive polential equity shares, -

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Tn the Cash Flow statement , Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and balance with bank in current account,

Ofifsetting l"mam:m] instruments
Financial assets and labilities are olTsct and the net amount is teported in (he balance sheet where thers is a legally

¢nforceatile right 1o offset the recopnised amounts and the there is an fmtention (o settfe on a net basis or realise the asset
amd settle the liability subsequeéntly, The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on fitire events and musi be
coforcsable in the normal course of business and in event of default | insolvency or bunkruptcy of the company o the
counter party,

Contingent Liabilitics’
Liabilities which are material and whose future outcane cannol be ascertained with re:.;somble certainty are iroat
conlingent and disclosed by way of notes to the accounts. -
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TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LlM.[I‘EI)
CIN: L67120WB1981PLCO33500
’ Registersd Ollices ™
*Terple Chambers” 6, (d Post Office Steect, 4th Flooir, Kolliata-700 001

3 Lirst time adoption of Ind AS

These sepuraty tinamelt of Tuwer 1y & Trading CoLimdled for the year ended hMarch, 31, 2020 bave leen prepared i secordunse with
Ind AS. For the purposes of transition to Tnd AS, the Company has faollowed the guidance prescribed in Ind AS 101 - First Time adoption of Indian
Acvounting Standard, with 1st April, 2018 as the transition date and Indion GAAP as the previous GAAP,

‘The tranzition to Tnd AS has [ted in changes in the | inn of the fingneial statements, disclosures in the notes thers i and aesounting palicies and
pinciples. The aegounting policios sl ul in Mole 2 have been wpplied in preparng the supurate finaneial statements for the vear ended 30 st March, 2020
and the comparative infurmation. Ao explanation of how the transifion from previous: GAAP to Ind AS has effected the Company’s Balance Shest,
Staternent of Frofit and Loss is explained in Note 3.2, Exemptions on firet time adoption of Ind AR availed in aceordance with Ind A% 101 have been sel
cut in Mate 3.1, .

Exemptions avatled an first hnle adnpluml
Ind-AS 101 alfews first-time adopters certain exemptions from the relrospective application of cedain requiremenls undm Ind AB, The Company bas
aecardingly apphcd the following exemptions.

{a) Estimates

Ind AS 101 providcs that an cntity's estimates as per Ind AS 8 "Accounding Policies, Changes inn Accounitng Estimates and Errors” at the date of transition
shall be consistent witlh the estimates made for same date in accordance wiih previous (FAAP, paless there is objective evidenee thyl those estimales were
in eror. E _
Accurdingly, the company has made Ind AS estimztes as at the transition date i.e. |5t Aprl 2018 which are conslstent with estimates made by it under the
previcus FAAP for the same date. The compary madz estimates for fallnwing items in aceordance with Tod AS al the date of transilion siee these were
nok redquires] under previous GAAPR

iy Evestment in anquoted equity instruments desiznatee at Fair Value through OCT

iiy * Investment in quoted equity instraments ane moinal funds designated ag Fair Value through Profit & Loss

iif) . Investnent in subsidiary campanies and an associate company is congidered a8 carryiog value ks per revidus GAAPR,

i¥) Impairrnent of financial assets based on expected credit loss model

3.2 Reconciliations between previons GAAT and Ind AS

a) Recanciliation of Bquity as ar 151 April, 2078 and as a0 3181 March, 2019,

The following reconciliatinns provide the effect of transition 10 Tnd AS fom previous GAAR in aueordance with Ind A8 101:
ay Bauity as ut 1s0 April, 2018 and as at 31 st March, 2019
b} Mot Frofit for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

"Notesia  Asal310Marck  Asatl Apell 2018

first time 2012 53]
. adopticn {T

Equity under firevious GAAT 22390115 T2.0659914
Adfusfmenis:-

Chunge in Fair vabuation of Financial losirimenls 1 3,78,08,135 4.50,05,019

Deeforred tax adjvstments 2 (48,19,128) (62,523,781}

Provision for Gruteity . 3 {3,82,212) {3,18,462)

L

Fauiey under Ind AS : 3,53,06,010 3,90 36,690

b) Reeonciliztion of lotal comprebensive income for thic year ended 31 March, 2019

Motes te firgt 018 2019
fime advption i)
Profit/(Loss) atter tax as per previous GAAP - ’ 21,530,199
Adjnstments
Chunge in Fair veluation of Finensial Instruments 1 (80,26,856)
Deferred Tax adjustmeants 2 14,55,344
Provision Jor Gratuily k] (63,750
Other Adjusfernents q (2,04.611)
Total camprehensive ineome as per Tnd AS {47,09,714)

¢} There are no maters] adjestments to the statements of cash flows as reportad under the previous GAAPR.

d) Mutes i Erst time adoplion

Note 1 : Change in Fair valuation of Finuncal Instruments

Under the previous (GAAD, investments in equily mstruments were olassified us long leem iovesiments hased ab the intended holding period and
realisation. Long-term investments were carried af cust less provision for other fian temporary decline in the value of such imvesiments, Under Ind AS,
‘these investinents are required to be measured at fair value at each reperting pertod.

Fair value changes with respoct fo imvestments in equily instrument & preference shaves are designated ot fuir value through OO and at amortized cost have
hein recognised n Bquity Trvesonent Reserve and in et loss on fair vatue changes respectively as at the date of transition and subscquently in other
comprehensive incume & Mel loss on fiur vailud chanzes for the year ended 315t March 2019, This increased other reserve by ¥ 5.19 Lacs as at 3 Lst March,
20019 {1t April, 2018 { 517 Lacs}

Consequent to the zbove, the toted equity a5 at 31st March, 2019 increused by ¥ 326.07 Lees (11 April, 2018 2 38327 Laes) and lola] comprehensive
inerme for the year ended 3 st March 2019 increased by T (47,104 Lacs.

Node 2 : Deforred Tax Adjustnients
Tax adfustments refating 10 above adfusiments are recopnised and adjnsted in retained earnings on the date of ransition, Dealerred tax adjustments relating
to the vear ended 315t March, 2019 have been adjusted in fhe statement of profit and loss for the said year,

Note 3 : Provision fur Gratuity
Trovision for Gratuity are recognized snd adjusted in rotsined comings on the date of transilion Tor the year ended 3151 Mareh 2009, €3 82 Lacs{ st
Aprl20I3% 318 Lacs)




TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Sta_temcnts

o . As at As al As at
- 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
£4  FINANCIAL ASSETS ¥ 4 ¥
- 41 CASH AND CASH LOUIVALENTS } .
-+~ Cashon Hand : ) 12,782 505 227
= Ralance with Scheduled Banks in Cittrent Account B _ 21.63.696 10,92,161 36,49,062
: 21,76,478 10,92,666 36,49,289
42 RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, considered gond)
© 4.2.1 Trade Reccivables _ - - -
422 Other Receivables /%) ' ' 345,008 53,853 11,72,959 .
(%} includes due from a private limited cmnipany in which direcior iy a director - - -
43 LOANS
{Unsecured, consideéred good)
At Amortised Cost (In Tndia)
Repayable on Demand )
- - To a Related Party o - - 30,000
- To Others : ' 1.21,02,700 $,31,02,700 1,52,700
1,21,02,700 1,31,02,700 © 2,062,700
" 4.4 INVESTMENTS (Refer note No. 24)
In India
{A) At Historieal Cost
© 1 Quoted: _
In Fully paid up Bquity Shares of an Associate Company, - ) . ) 2.56,350 256,350 2,56.350
m 256350 2,56350 2,56,350
ii} Unquoted: . :
a) In Fully paid up Equity Shares of an Associate Company ) - - -
b} In Fully paid up Egnity Sharcs of Subsidiary Company: ) _ 91,803 51,803 91,803
- [ 21,803 91,803 91,803
St (B) At Amortised Cost
) - - -
(CY AtFVOCL
inquoted: . '
ij Tn Fully paid up Equity Shares of Companies: 10,38,000 8,05,500 13,05.500
[I¥v] 10,38,0600 8,058,500 13,05,500)
Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.} -
{DMALFVTPL,
D Quoted: -
In Pully paid up Equily Shares of Companies . 3,05,90. 649 3,90,58,665 4.73,77,901
Unquoted:
f hml Units of Muiual Funds: . 38,26,130 49.07,181 1,45,84,676
Y 3,42,16,779 __ 4,39,65.846 6,19,62.577
b . .
® . - : . ]I'-!:II+1'II+IV+V] 3,56,02,932 4,51,19,499 6,36,16,230
Less: Provision for Diminntion in value of Investments . . - _ - -
- ’ 3.56,02,932 4,51,19,44% 6,36,16,230 -
- Aggregote amount of Quoted Investments and market value thereof 3,06,46,998 3,93,15,015 4,76,34.251

1,59.81,979

Aggregate amount of Unguoted fnvestments 49,55,933



« Notes fo Financial Statements (Contd.)

5.3

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.3

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSE'I-‘S
Security Deposit
Other Recervable

NON - FINANCIAL ASSETS

CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Taxation Advance & Refundables (Net of Provisions)

OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

-Prepaid Expenses

Oifier Advances

FINANCIAL LTABILITIES

DEPOSITS
Security Deposits

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILTTIES
{rthor Payable

NON-FINANCIAL LIARILITIES
PROVISIONS

Contingent provision against Standard Assets
Provision lor Employee Benefits- Grafuity -

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NE
Deterred Tax Asset/(Liabilily) relating to:

- Depreciation on Property, Flant and Equipment
- Finangial instruments measured at Fair Value

- Unahsorbed Losses

- Employee Benctit

OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Statolory Dues

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Interest Income

On financial assets measnred at amortised cosl
On Loans
On Fixed Deposils

OTHER INCOME

Others

Interest: .. '
Cn Security Deposits
Cn Income Tax Refund

As at As at Asai
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
z 3 F
1,41,690 10,500 3,12,021
1,41,690 10,500 3,12,021
1.18.801 15,38,489 18,80,422
1,18,801 15,38,489 18,80,422
3,54.000 4,720 .
3,54,000 4,720 -
149,310 2,76,406 40,73,830
30,257 32,891 1,52,825
426346 3,82,212 318462
4,56,603 4,15,103 4,71,287
50,87,275 70,72,495 84,93 832
(20.11,210) (21,53,992) 21,33,281)
_ (1,10,850) _(99.375) {(82,004)
29,65,213 48,19,128 62,78,567
11,520 14,880 23,247
2019-2020 2018-2019
4 g
8,582,904 59,392
8,82 004 50,302
145,731 -

145,73




Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)
11 EXPENSES

L1 NET LOSS ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES

* - On Quoted Equity Shares & Mutual Futids . 97,49,068 80,30,992
b!_.i!.i EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
% Salary, Boius aind other allowances. . 9.82,064 19,04,847
“Staff Welfure Expenses _ 261 -
- . 9,84.738 19,004,847
11.3 OTHER EXPENSES :
Rates and Taxes . 4,700 4,866
Filing Fees . 33,200 6,98,460
Legal & Professional Charges T : : 1,62,900 1,722,898
Establishment Charges . 36,000 36000
Insurance Premivum ) - 46,604
Service Charges . : - 272,712
Travelling & Conveyance ' 6,091 2,24 252
Printing & Stationery i 2,641 -
Auditors' Remuneration: : '
For Statutory Audit 16,500 40,000
For Other Services : : - -
. Listing Fees ' _ - : - -
Advertisement Expenscs 68,249 -
Membership Subscription : 53,100 17,700
Postagé 3 Telephone Exp i ’ 13,516 -
Asscts Written off . - 5,00,060
Miscellancons expenses 1,09 466 30,531
) 5,06,363 19,94,023

12 TAX EXPENSES
a} Currend Tax

Provision For Income Tax ’ - 447472
o  Income Tax Adjustments : _ ’ 684641 -
- : 6,84,641 A47472
b) Deferred Tax o

Deferred Tax Adjustments
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TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMTTED

Notes to Financiat Statements (Contd.) . AS AT AS AT ABAT
31.03.2020 31.03,201% 01042018
z - = 2

g8 nOUTyY

8.1 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
10,00,000 Equily sharcs of 10/ cach ’ 1,0,00,000 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Pajd up ;
4,12,130 Equity shares of Z10/~ each fully paid up ' . 41,21,300 41,21,300 _ 4L21L,30

a} Details of shaieholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Shares in the company:

) ’ As at 31.03.2020 As at 3103, 2HY As at 01.04.2018
Name of Sharehofder —— . - —
. Ngs, | %% holdin Mus, % holdin, Nops. % hiotding|

Shanmya Veer Himatsinghic 53,002 15.31% 53,002 15.31% sz | 18.3]1%
Burllaslan Thvestments Privata Eimited ] " 30,570 TF.A29% 30,570 T AN 30,570 74284
Ehate Investment & Teacing Co, Tad, -G4,138 15.56%) 1 64138 15.56% 1] 64133 15.56%
Mew Laok Fnvestment Bengal Linsited 74,104 17.95% 74104 | 17.08%, 74,104 | 17.0805|
Idr. Rakegh Bumar Shaurys Vear . 23,800 5.7 T% 23,300 577 23,500 5377%
Gawrsy Hirnatsinalika & Dipuk Kr Fimatsing) 31,376 7.61% 31,376 | 7.61% 31,376 761%

b) Tern/Rights attached to Bruity Shares:
The company has only one lass of equily shares having a par value of 10/~ per share, Each holder of equity shares is entiled to one vote per share, The
Comipany deckares and pays Dividend in Indian Rupees, The dividend proposed by ihe Buard of Directors is subjcet Lo the approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing Annuai General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to reecive remaining asssts of fhe company, afier distribution ol alk
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion Lo the anmber of equity shares held by the shareholders. ' '

. AS AT ASAT AS AT
%31 OTHER LQUITY 31032020 31,03.2019 01.0:4.2018
Z 4 Z
a) Reserve Fund- (As per RBY Guidelines)
Batance as por last Accomnt : 8,55, 408 5,26.3435 5,20365
Add; Transfer from Statement of Profit & loss - - ) 426040 -
9,55,408 . 4,55,405 - 529,365

by Capital Reserve
Balance as per kast Account . 1.90.25,146 19025 146 1,%0,25,146
Add: Tranafer from Siatement of Profit & loss - - -

1,00,25,146_ 19025146 1,90,25,146
) Retained Earnings
Genperal Reserve ) - - -
Surplus/{Deficit) in the Staleient of Profit and Loss ' ) .
Balance as per fast Account : . 3,07.76,347 3,57.56.263 3,57.96,263
Add: Profit{Loss) for the year (83,29.534) (47,13,810% -
Add: Transfer from Equily Investment Reserve wpon realisation : - . - -
Less: Transfer to Reserve Fund - (4,26,040) -
TLess: Transfer to Contingent Provision against Slandard Assets 2,634 1,19,934 -
. ’ 2,24,49,047 3,07,76,347 3,57,5%6,263
Total Retained Earnings 4,24,29,598 ’ . 5,07,56,898 5,53,50,774
¢} Equily Iovestment Reserve
As per last Account ) 5,1_8,?12 5,14,614 -
Changes in fair value of cquity instruments 1,588,033 4,006 5.14,616
Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings upon realisation : - - -
7.07,665 5,18,712 5,14,616
TOTAL ' 4,31,37,263 5,12,75,610 T 5,58,65,390

Nature of Reserves:

Reserve Fund- (As per RBT guidelines)
Reserve Fund represents a statutory provisions crealud as per the RBT guidelines applicable for NBFC Campanies,

Equity Investment Reserve . )
This reserve reprosents the camulative gaing and losses arising on the revaluation of equity & other financial instruments measured at fair
compsshensive income, net off amouns reclassiiled to refained earnings when Mose assets have been disposed off
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TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)
(i) The major components of tax expense for the yezirs ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are:

2019 - 2020 2018 - 2019

Cuarrent Tax:

Current tax expenses for current year _ - 447,472
Current tax expenses pertaining to prior perieds - . 6,84,641 -

_ ' ' 684,641 - 447472
Deferred tax obligations ' (18,67,462) (14,55,344)
Total fax expense reported in the statement of profit or Ioss - . (12,12 821} {10,07,872)

(ii} The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at stafutory incomie tax rate to income tax expenses reporfed in

statement of profit and loss is as follows:
2019 - 2020 2015 - 2019

i

Profit before income taxes ' : (95,42,755) (97,09,630)
At statutory ihcorme tax rate . : 26.00% 26.00%
Expected Income Tax expenses _ - 4,47472
Tax expenses pertaining to prior periods ' 6,84,641 -
Total Income Tax expenses ' - 6,84,641 4,47,472

(iif) Significant components of net deferred tax assefs and lial:ifllties for the year ended on 31st March, 2020 is as follows:

Recognised/ Recognised/

. reversed reversed in -
Opening Balance  through other Closing Balance’
' Profitand comprehensive
_ . Loss _ income
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilites in relation to: '
- Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment o= - - -
- Financial Tnstruments measured at Fair Value . 70,72,495 - (19,85,222) 50,87,273
- Unabsorbed Losses _ o (21,53,997) 1,42,782 - (20,11,210)
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) : 49,18,503 = 1,42,782 (19,85,222) 30,76,063

Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended on 31st March, 2019 is as follows:

Recognised!  Recogmised/

- reversed reversed in
Opening Balance  through other . Closing Balance
Profit and  comprehensive
: Loss income
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilites in relation to:
- Depreciatien on Property, Plant and Equipment - - - -
~Financial Instruments measured at Fair Value 84,993,852 ) - (14,21,337) 70,72,495
- Unabsorbed Losses _ : (21,33,281) (20,711) - {21,53,992)

i

Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities} 63,60,571 (20,711) {14,21,357) .-
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- disclosures are as below:

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.}

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The earning per sharc has been calenlated as specified in Ind-AS-33 on "Earnings Per Share” prescribed by Companies {Accounting Statndards) Roles, 2015 and related

For Caleulating Basic & Diluied carnings per share

2019-2020

2018-2015

Total Financial Liabilities

&) Profits atiribuiable to Equity holders of the Compnay (83,29,534) (47,09.714)
i) Weighted Average number of equity shaves nsed as 2 denominator ' 412130 412130
in calcwlating EPS (Nos.) : :
¢} Basic & Dilated EPS (b} {20.21) (11.43)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ’

Financial Tnstruments by category
The carrying value of financial instrumonis b}l! categories as on 31st-bMarch, 2020 are as bllows:

. . (3 in Lacs)
. Fair Value through . ) . 1
Particulars Note Profit & Loss Fair Value through Amortised Cost Total cnrrym_g. Total Fair
Reference 0OCI . value Value

Financial Assets
Cuslt & Cash Equivalents 4.1 - - 2L.78 2170 2176
Tradc Reccivables 42,1 - - - - - :
Other Receivables 4.2.2 - - 345 345 345

|Loans 4.3 - - 121.03 121.03 121.03

Investinenis

- Equity Instruments 4.4 34217 10.38 . 348 356.03 356.03

Other financial assets 45 - - 142 142 1.42

Totul Fingncial Assefs 342,17 10.38 . 15114 503.69 503.69
Financial Liabikitics
Deposits . &1 - - - - -
Oither financial labilities 6.2 - - 1.4% 1.49 1.49
Total Financial Liabilities - - 149 149 49
The carcying value of financial insirinenis by calogories as on 31st March, 2018 are az follows:

. (T in Lacs)
¢ Fair Vilue throsgh . .
’ = 4 N ¥] »
Particalars WNote Profit & Loss Fair Value throngh Amortised Cost Taotal carrying Total Fair
Reference value Yaluc

Financial Assets ’ ]

Cash & Cash Equivalents 4.1 - - 10.93 10.93 10.93
Cther Receivables 4372 - - - L34 0.54 (1534
Loans 43 - - 151.03 131,03 131,03
Investmonts )

- Byuity [nstruments 4.4 43266 8.06 - 3.4% 451.19 451.19
Other financial assets 4.5 - - 0.11 0.11 G.l11
Tatsl Financial Assets 439,66 3.06 146.08 593.79 593.79
Financial Liahilities
Deposits 6.1 - - - - -
Other financial lHabilities 6.2 - - 276 2.76 2.76
Total Financial Liabilities - - 2.76 2.76 2.76
The carrying value of financial instruimnents by categories as on st April, 2018 arg as follows:

(T in Lacs)
. Note Fair Yalue through  Fair Value through . Total earrying Totsl Fair

Partienlars Reference Profit & Loss OCT Amartised Cost value Vahie
Financial Assefs
Cash & Cash Equivalents 4] - - 36.4% 36,49 36,45
Other Receivables 422 - - 11.73 11,73 11,73
Loans 4.3 - - 2.03 2.03 2.03
Investiments _ '

- Equity Instruments 4.4 619.63 13.06 3.48 636.16 636.16
(ther fimancial assets 4.5 - - 3.2 312 312
Totil Financial Assets G19.63 13.06 ) 56,85 689,53 68953

| Financial Liabilities
Deposiis 6.1 - - - - -
Other financtal Habilities 6.2 - 40,74 40,74
- 40.74 40.74
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TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

Management estimatiens and assiumptions - _
a) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the shori-term maturities of these Instruments.

b) The fair value of the financial assets and liahilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The foliowing methods and

assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
(3) The fair values of the quoted shares are based on price quotations at the reporting date,

(ii) The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have beent determined based on certifications from valuers who have used
Net Asset Value approach for determining the fair values,

Fair value hierarchy

The followmg table presents the fair value hierarchy of assets and Habilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis ;

. (Xin Lacs)
Fair value measurement at end of the reporting
Parliculars Note period/year using
Reference Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 -Total
LAs on 31st March, 2020
|Financial Assets '
Equity & Other Insirunents . 4.4 306.47 38.26 11.30 356.03
As on 31st March, 2019
Financial Assets i .
Equity & Other Instruments ' 4.4 . 393.15 49.07 8.97 451.19
| As on 1st April, 2018
Financial Assets
Equity & Other Instruumnents ) 44 476.34 145.85 13.97 636.16

Level 1: Quoted Prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 ; Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Ilablhty, either divectly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from pnces)

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The company's policy is to recognize transfers into and the transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period. There are no fransfers between level 1 and level 2 during the end of the reported periods.

i

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company tries to
foresee the unpredictable nature of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse impact on its financial
perfon ‘mance. The senior managemenl 0[ the company OVersees the mdnagement of these risks, The Audlt Comm1ttee has

speculative purposes may be undertaken,




Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

I3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Fre

. I.:“

= Related parties and transactions with them as specified in the Ind-AS 24 on “Related Parties Disclosures™ prestibed under
Companies {(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 has been identified and given below on the basis of information available
with the company and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

a) Related Parties

Particulars ) L
(i) Enterprises where control exists _ Relationship

Saket Cement Products Private Limited Subsidiary Company
(i) Associates & Joint Ventures _ Relationship

Khaty Investments & Trading Co. Limited Associate Company

(iii Individual owning an interest in the voting power of the company and
their relatives ' '

(iv. Key Management Personnel and their relatives ' Relationship
Swarup Kumar Maity ' Whole Time Director
Gontam Kumar Dag CFO
Company Secretary

Varsha Jam

(v) Enterprises over which any person
referred in (iii) or (iv) is able to exercise

\




For the year ended March 31, 2020

For the year ended March 31, 201 9

Associates, Joint |

Key

Key Associates, Joint
ventures and
. Management ventures and Management
Enterprises over . :
which Ke Personnel and | Enterprises over | Personnel and
. ) ' Sy _ Individuals which Key Individuals
Nature of Transactions Managerial Person] . . ’ A
S e - owning an Managerial Personj owning an
and their relatives | : . . X :
; ve able interest in the | and their relatives | interestin the
are able 1o voting power |are able to exercise| voting power
exercise . o C
L and their significant and their
significant N . "
. relatives influence - relatives
influence :
5 T 3 z
Expenses
Salary, Bonus & Other allowances
-Goutam Kumar Das - 3,63,800 - 2,83,900
~Swarup Kumar Maity - 2,71,260 - -
-Varsha Jain - 60,330 - -
Balance at Year Beginning .
-Loan
~Goutam Kumar Das - 40,000 - -
-Swarup Kumar Maity ) - C - -
-New Look Investment {Bengal) Ltd. - - - 50,000
Amount Paid During the Year
- Loan _ _
-Goutam Kumar Das - 30,000 - 40,000
-Swarup Kumar Maity - 25,000 - -
-Interest paid
-New Lock Investment {Bengal) Ltd. - - - 3,995
Amount Repaid During the Year
- Loan
-Goutam Kuwnar Das. - 40,000 -
-Swarup Kumar Maity - - -
-New Look Investment (Bengal) Ltd. - - 50,000
Balance at Year End
Amount Receivable
-Loan
-Goutam Kumar Das - 30,000_ - 40,000
-Swarup Kumar Maity - 25,000 - -
Balance at Year End
Amount Payable
Salary, Bonus & Other allowances _
-Goutam Kumar Das - 30,400 - 30,400
-Swarup Kumar Maity - 24,660 - -
-Varsha Jain ~ 20,000 - -




" Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

"~ 16 Particulars as required in terms of Paragraph 13 of Non Banking Financial (Non - Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies
%, = Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 is as per annexure.

| 17 On the basis of physical verification of assets, as specified in Ind-AS - 36 and cash gencration capacity of these assets, in the
™ management's perception, there is no impairment of such assets as appearing in the balance sheet as on 31.03.2020.

18 a) Previous year figures above are given in brackets

b) Previous year figure have been regrouped rearranged, wherever found necessary

For D. Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(ASHIS RANJAN MAITRA)

Partner

Membership No, 056520

‘Place : Kolkata
Date : 30Th July 2020

i dd

Signature to Note "1 to 19"

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO.LTD.

* )¢
TR C< Whole-Time Direglor
Din:Ot2002 81 .

PR VA bﬂ/‘
Chief Financial Officer

FOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING GO, LTD.

Director
N o7TI9740

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. _LTD.
Vanshe Taii.
Compeny Secretary

FOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

" Divactor
IN00R4TGFFe-

-
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Particulars as required In ferms of Para 13 of Nan Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or holding} Companizs & Prudential Norm
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007; :

LIABILITIES SIDE _ ’ Amt. Amt.
Quitstanding Sverdue
Leans and advances availed by the NBFC
inclusive of inferest acoried therson but
not paid
- From Directors
- Infer eorporate loans and borrowings - -
ASBETS SIDE ) i Anit.
Outstanding
01. Break up of Loans and advances including
hills receivable [Other than those included
in (2) below]
(&) Secured -
(bY Unsscured 1,28,43,388
1,29.43,388
02. Break up of | eased Assets and Stock on hire
and hypothecation loans counting towards
EL/HF activities :
03, Break up of Investmenis
Currznt Investmentst®)
-immevable Propery
Long Term Investments
- Equity Shares {Quoted) 3,06,46,998
-Eguity Shares {Unquoted) 11,29,8063
-Freference Shares (Unquoted} -
-Units of Mutual Funds (Unquoted}) 38,268,130
Total __ 85602032
{* Includes Stock-in-Trade
04, Borrower group wise classification of alt ieased
-assets, stock-on-hire and loans and advances :
(&l unsecured, net of provisions)
1. Related parijes
a) Subsidiaries .
b} Companies in the same group -
) Othér related parties ) 141,690
2. Other than related parties 1,28,01.708
Taotat 1,29,43,398
05. Investor group wise classification of all invest-
menis (current and long ferm) in shares and * Market
sgeyiities (hoth quoted and ungquoted) Value/Break Book
UpdFair Value {Met of
YValue or NAY Frovisions
1. Related partics
' &) Subsidiaries 91,803 91,503
2,56,350 256,350

by Companies in the same group -
o} Other related parties

3,52,54,779 3,562,54,779

2. Other than related partios
Total . 3,56,02,932 3,55,11,129

* Break up valug of shares of ungueoted companies, being not
available in all cases have been conpsidered at Book Value.

06. Other information Amount (¥} -

1. Gross Non Performing Assets
2. Net Non Performing Assets
3. Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

TOWER INVESTNENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD,

For D. Basu & Co. e~ P
Chartered Accountants
© W i 3 /ggﬁog}TgneDIrector
- Al b oper RADING CO. LD, ez

s RANAN WATRA - B TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING ¢, 7p

Partmer * T ot
I F-
Membership No. 056520 : é b

Place : Kolkata . Chféf Financia! Offtcer - %M i % ’

Date :30Th July 2020 - TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD, -
Yz Directs
Vandia Jain J1x o7 71 ??4!31'

Company Secretary

Pireclor

I OOB4Gy 75
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CIN: L67120WB1981PLC033500;
— Regiafered Office :
*Temple Chambers® 6, Old Post Office Street, 4th Flaor, Kolkats-700 001

Mg r 12

NOTES FORMING PAR;.I' OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Iiivestment 31st March, 2020 31st Mareh, 2019 015t April 2618

AN Mo. of Aot () Mo, of Amount (£} Mo, of (Units Amount (£}
A Investinents m Associate - FYOC] Units Units
1 Ehati Investmant & Trading Co. Ltd 104- 45,600 2.56.330 45 600 256,350 45600 256,350
45,600 2.,56,350 45,600 2,536,350 45 600 2,356,350
FY Ma. aff Amownt (T} Mao. of Amagngt (F) Wo. of Upits Asnonnt (3
B Investments in Subsiday - Valued at FVOCT Units Units
1, - Saket Cemeant Products Pyvt, Led, 10k~ 30,599 01803 340,590 91,803 30,599 o1,803
30,599 01,803 30,599 51,803 30,509 91,803
1}
C Unquoted Fruity Sheves - Valued al TYQOCL
SL Mo, Name ol the Company BV, Mo, of - Arnount {F) Mo, of Amount {3} Ho. of Linits Atmound (3)
i EAP Industries Lid. 10/~ 1,500 15,000 1,500 15,000 1,500 15,000
1,500 15,000 1,500 15,000 1,500 15,000
EW. Neo. of Amonnt (3 No. ol Amount () MNo. ol Unils Atnount
Unguated Bgaity Shares - Iranslered through FYOCL LUnits : Linity
i Burlington Tnvesfments Pyt Tod, 104- 45,500 10,23 000,00 46,500 790,500 46,500 790,500
2 Sanghi Hire Purchase Ltd. i - - . 500,000
46,500 10,_2;1,000.00 46,500 790,500 46,500 12,540,500
i Omoied Secynties - Vaheed at FVTPL ) )
51 Mo., Manes of he Sseuilics EM. Mo.of. Amonnt (T) MNo. of Amonnt () Mo, of Usiis Amount (F)
Linits . Units
1 Amines & Plasticizers Lid. ) 2f 1,25.125 25,02,500 1,25,125 41,60,406 1,25,125 72,32,225
2 Anoes & Plasticizers LAd. (Bonus) L2 T 125,425 25,02,500 1,25,125 41,860,406 1,25,125 72,32.225
3 Gragiod ndusirics Lid. . 2/- 14,803 70,38,297 14,805 1,27.03.651 14,805 1.56,13,353
4 Himdustan Unilever Lid. 14 5,000 1,14, 90,750 5,000 #5.59.000 5,000 66,779,750
s Ulwatech Cetnent Lisited 10/- 1,692 53,06,191 1,692 67,66,393 1,692 66,79,762
[ Aditya Birla Capital limited 164 20,737 8,74.679 20,727 20,23,292 20,727 3{,23,033
7 Graphite Indis Lid. o 2 TH0 EEOTO 700 3,12,795 700 508,315
8  Rain lndustrics Ltd, (Bonos) 2f- 70 3,912 T 7,175 1| 26,191
9 Herdilia Chemicals - 150 6,608 150 . 6,608 150 6,608
10 Bharat Commerce Tndustries Lid. ; - Gbd 27,142 961 27.142 D 27.142
11  Haryana Steel & Alloys Lid, - 1550 37,213 L3350 37,215 1,550 37,215
12 Indian Organic & Chem. Ltd. . - 300 5545 300 5,545 300 5,545
13 Baroda Rayon Corporation Lid {3 100 22,204 Lo 22,204 100 22,204
14 Bihar Alleys Steef Limdied - 100 510 100 510 100 310
£5 LI Finance Timited i - 100 1,000 100 1,000 100 1,000
1o dodern hetals Fad . - 500 12,625 200 12,635 500 12,625
3,01,20.64% 327,88 663 4,71,07.901
. EX. Ne. of Amount (T} Ne. of’ Amnount (F) Mo, of tinits Amoynt (T}
D - Quoted Fguity Shaves - Vafued at FVOCT Uits Units
I New Look Investrent{Bengal) Ltd 10/- 38,150 2,70,600 38,130 2,70,000 38,130 2,70,000
38,150 2.70.000 38,150 2,70,0060 38,150 2,70,000
EY. Mo of  Amount(F} Mo, aof Anaurt (¥ No. of{Inits Aananat (¥}
E luvestmends in Mutual Timds - Yalwed at FYTEL Unily Unilg
1 Idfe Hybrid Equity Fund - - 38,26,130. - 49,07,181 - : . -
2 HODFC Cash fanagemenst Fund - - - - - 2,753,643 -1,00,05,469
3 HDFEC Balance Fond -~ . - - : - - - 31,407
: - 38,26,130 4907188

g
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Calculation of Deffered Tax

On Comprehensive Transferred through OCI :-

Opening Balance as o1 01.04.2019 | 14,690
Addition during the vear 43,547
Deletion during the year _ -

Closing Balance as on 31.3.20 * 58237

On Fair Value Transferred through PL :-

Opening Balance as on 01.04.2019 _ 70,57.806
Addition during the year - (20,28,770) -
Deletion during the year _ -
Closing Balance as on 31.3.20 _ 50,29,037
Total (DTAYDTL on F.V. Changes 50.87,274

On _Loss.es Carrired Forward:-

Opening Balance as on 01.04.2019 21,53,992
Addition during the year ' (1,42,782)
Deletion during the year -
Closing Balance as on 31.3.20 20,11,210
NET (DTA)/DTL for the year ;  (30,76,064)

Losses Carrired Forward:-

Opening Balance as on 01.04.201% : 82,84,586
Addition during the year _ (5.49,163)
Deletion during the year o
Closing Balarice as on 31.3.20 - 77.35,423
20,11,210

Provision For Grautity

DTA
DTL
bTA

. DTL

DTA
DTA
DTL
DTA

DTL

DTA
DTA
DTL
DTA
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' DBASU & CO

Chartered £

. Independen

To the Mem)

hccountants

t Auditor’s Report

bers of Tower Investment & Trading Company Limited .

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

. Opinion -

i

We have auuhted the accompanying consohdatcdfmancla] statements of M/s. Tower Investment &

Trading Ce
subsidiariesa)
“the Group’
consolidated
statement of
consolidated

explanatory jnformation.

In our opini
aforesaidcon
(‘Act’) in thp
principles ge
under Sectio
- consolidated

- consolidated

Basis for Of
We conducts
143(10) of th
in the Auditg
are independ
Chartered Ad
audit of the
therevnder,

requirements

jmpany Limited . (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its
nd associates (Holding Company, its subsidiariesand associatestogether referred to as
), which comprises the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3 1St March, 2020, the
statément of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),consolidated
changes in equily and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant acuountmE policies and other

n and to the best of our information and according te the explanations given to us, the
Lolidatedfinancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
b manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
nerally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind-AS") specified
h 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2020, and its
,]054 (including other comprehensive income)its consolidated cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that datc.

110N N

d our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
e Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
r’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staterments section of our report. We
ent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
countants of India (‘\ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
hnd we have fulfilled our other cthical I‘GSpOnSIbllﬂ,]eb m accordance with these
and the Code of Ethics. : :

We believe Ijhat the audlt ewdence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a basis

for our opini

Toformation|

" The Holding
information
financial stat

Our opinion
not ¢xpress a

DIT.
other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
ments and our auditor’s report thereon. '

hn the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
ny form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In conncetiof with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 1espon°,|b1hty is lo read the
htion and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially- inconsistent
incial statcments or our knowledge obtained in the dudit or otherwise ap

other inform
with the fin
materially m

FD — 148, SALT LAKE,
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" ing¢luded.in’
‘associate to

. 4 guaranied

if; individug
" decisions of]
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- misstatemner
_this regard.

Responsibil

these consol

- of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

ty of Management for the ConsolidatedFinancial Statements

" The Holding Company’s Board of Dircetors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of

dated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the

Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performancef and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associate in accordance with the
accounting grinciples generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under

section 133
its associate:
provisions o

i the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies inctuded in the Group and
wre responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records. in accordance with the
Fthe Act for safeguarding the assets pf the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds

and other jrregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments 4nd estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenancg of adequate internal fimancial confrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy angl completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of

the financial
- whether dueftc
financial stafements by the Dircctors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In prepariﬂg

statements that give a true and fair view and. are free from material misstatement,
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated

the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
he Group and its associate are vesponsible for assessing the ability of the Group and its
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern

and using the going. concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate thel Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. '

The respect

ve Board of Directors of the companies fncluded in’the Group and its associale are

responsible jor overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and its associate.-

Auditor’s R:esponsibiliiy for the Audit of the ConsolidatedFinancial Statements

Our objectivies are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor’s reffort that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material

As part of
professional

« Identify 2
whether d
obtain aud
of not det;
error, as

Ity or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
lisers taken on the basis of these conselidated financial statements. o

an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

hd assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
e to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and
it evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk
ccting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
fraud may involve collusion, forgerf/,, intentional omissions, misi"epresentations, or the

override of internal control.

+ Obtain an.

nderstanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we

are alse i
financial d

esponsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has ad Catsnal
ontrols system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. -

FD — 148, SALT LAKE,
KOLKATA — 700106.



= Evaluate

he appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasopableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude qn the appropriateness of managemerit’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on

conditions
a going co
in our aud
disclosures

he avudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue as
scern. If we conclude that a material nncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
[tor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
: are inadéquate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence

‘obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
- Group and its associate’to cease to continue as & going concetu.

» Evaludte the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,

including

the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the

undel lymg transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain suffficient appropriate andit evidence regarding the finangial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated

'ﬁnancia] S
" of the fin:
which we

fatemnents. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
hncial statements of such entities included in the consolidated fi nancial statements of
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidaied financial

statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for

the directi
responsibl

bn, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
e for our audit opinion.

‘We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
. entities in¢luded in theiconsolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors

regardin &
ﬁndiuas, 1

@ o

We also

o}

among other matters, the planned scope and {iming of the audit and significant audit
1ciudmg any significant deficiencies fn interhal control that we identify during our audit.

rovide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant dthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our mdependence and
where applicable, rclated safeguards.

From the

atters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were [of most significance in the andit of théconsolfidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstaces, we determine thaf a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonab]y be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication” . :

. Other 'Mat_ter ' ‘

The finandial statements of subsidiaries and associates considered in this consolidated financial

statement

have been audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furmshed by the

. managemept 1o us, and our opinion is based solely on the reports of the other aud P

- However,

ur opmlon is not qualified in respect of this matter.

SU & CO -' | . __ | _FD—;a'S, sm% LAKE,

\ccountants | | - KOLKATA — 700106.
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Report on Gher Legal_and Regulatory Requirements

~As required f)y Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(z) We havé sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
know]edge and belief were ueces‘sary for the purposes of cur audit.

'(b)m our opmlon proper books of account as required by ]aw have been kept by the Company so far

as it app_earb from our examination of those books;

(c) the con olldated balance sheef, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consohdated
statement of] changcs in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are
in a.gremnem with the beoks of account; .
(d) in our ppinion, the aforesaid consclidatedfinancial statements comply with the Accountmg
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Compames {Accounts)
Rules, 2014y :

“(e) on the bsis of the written representatmm received from the directors as on 31"March 2020 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1" March 2020 from

" being appon

i. the group

conlracts wh

(f) With res|
requirements

In our opini{
provisions ¢

(g) with red

tcd as a director in terms of Secuon 164 {2) of the Act;

pect to lhc other matters to be included in the Audltor 8 Report in accordance with the
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

bn and to the best of our information and according to the expldnauons given to us, the

semuneration, if any, paid by the company to its directors durmg the year is in accordance wﬂh the

f section 197 of the Act.

pect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference toconsolidated

financial stallements of the group and the opcratm g effectiveness of such controls, refer te our separate-

report in “A
(h) with resp

of the Compy
and accordir

i1. thegroup

‘jii. there wg

Protection F

Place: Kolk
Dated: 30"

UDIN :- 204

nexure A”; and

ect to the othcr matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repoﬂ, in accordance with Rule 11
anies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opmlon and to the best of our information
g to the cxplanations given fo us:

Hoes not have any pending litigations which would 11npact its financial position;

Hoes not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative
ich would impact its financial position;

Lre no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Imvestor Education and

ind by the group, :

' _For D.Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants

{Firm Registration No.301111E)

o] A R i

ta
uly,2020 _ ' {Ashis Ranjan Maitra)
E{;Sl@ﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁ%j—ggf?’ PARTNER

Membership No. 056520
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D BASU & CO

Chartered Accountants
_Annexure. -

A to the Auditors” Report

Repori _oil tt:: lnternal Finaneial Controls under Clause (i) of Suh—secnon 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies

et, 2013 (“the Act”™)

We have au:iited the jnternal financial controls over financial reporting of Tower Investment &

Trading Co
Company an

mpany Limited . (“the Holding Coppany™), and its subsidiaries and associates(Holding
H its subsidiaries and associates together referred to as “the Group”) as of 3 1¥March 2020

in conjunotmn with our aud:t of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that

date.

Managemen s Responmblhty for Internal Financial Conirols

essential coy

The Group’s management is responsible for establishing and mamtaimng internal financial controls
based on thefinternal control over financial reporting critetia established by the Group considering the

hponents of internal control stated ip the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

~ Controls ovar Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAL’).
These respopsibilities includc the design, 1mplemeutauon and maintenance of adequate internal

financial cojtrols that were operating effectweiy for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, includmg adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of|frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

timely prepabation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

A_uditors’ Résponsibi[ity

Our respons

b111ty is to express an opinion on the Group s internal financial conirols over financial

reporting baged on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Hinancial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under soction 143{10) of the Companies Act,

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of

Internal Fingricial Conirojs and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those

perform the

" Standards afd the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls

over financial reporlmg was ESStdbhthd and maintained and if such controls operated eﬁectwc Ly in all

Qur audit in

‘material resp ects.

bolves performmg procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial coptrols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of

internal ﬁnarmal contrals over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal

{inancial co

trols over tinancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and

testing and evalvating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, The prdcedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material mxsstalcment of the ﬁnancml statements, whether due to fraud or error, -

We believe
for our andif|

hdt the audit ewdencc we have obtamccl is sufficient and appropriate to p10v1de a basis
OmeOI'I on the Group” 5 internal financial controls system over financial rep

.‘,- =y

'FD — 148, SALT LAKE,
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Chartered Accountants . B ~ KOLKATA — 700106.
Meaning of [lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting : '

TheGroup's |internal financial conirol over financial reporting is.a process designed to provide
reasonable absurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements flor external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

~TheGroup's |nternal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that (1) pertiin to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect

' the transactipns and dispositions of the assets of the Group; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions hre recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally acfepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Group are being

"made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Group; and (3}

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely ‘detection of unautherised acquisition,
use, or disgosition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
glatements. | ' :

Inherent Lipitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal finhncial contrels over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud miay occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal

financial cofitrols over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial corftrol over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degrpe of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

i

In our opinipn, the Group has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system
over {inancil reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at 31"March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established py the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For D;Basu & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.301111E)

l

i L Y . ‘e ' A Ml":ﬁ‘
Place: I(ul!;ar_ta fEQKp\TP«. 5 !/ﬁwﬂ Q‘V"ﬁm
Dated: 30" July,2020 A Iy {Ashis Ranjan Mazitra}
N | PARTNER

e Membership No. 856520




TOWER IN VESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

 GIN: L67120WBI9BTPLCO33S00
Registered Office 1

‘Templc Chambers’ 6, Old Post Office Street, 4th I‘lour, Kolkata-700 001

Cousolidated S_tatemeut of A_ssets and Liablities as on 31st March 2020

First Time adoption of |
Accompanying noles t

nd AS ' : 3
[the financial statements 4 to 20

= Particulars Note No. | Asat31.03.2020 Asat3L03.2009  Agat01.04.2018
. ASSETS :
Financial Assets ; SR 4
-, Cash and Cash Fqulva cnt's . 4.1 23,83,911 14,21,020 38,444,803
% Receivables : 4.2
- Trade Receivables | 4.2.1 105,244 45,501 8.22.000
- Other Receivables | 4:.2.2 3.45.008 53,853 3,62,959
Loans : 4.3 1,21,02,700 1,31,02,700 2,02,700
Investments : 4.4 4.16,48.844 525,001,988 7,19,15.941
. Other Financial Assets) i 4,5 1,61,690 30,300 3,32,021
' 5,67,47,397 6,71.55,562 7.74,80,424
Non-Financial Assets 3
Inventories - - -
Current Tax Asscis mat) 5.1 1,18.81 16,32,959 19,608,770
Investiment Property - 5.2 3,37,576 3,553,601 3,74,589
Property, Plant and Eqipment 5.3 3,411 9,233 25,000
Other Non-Financial Aksets 54 3,54,000 4,720 -
' i 8.13,788 20,02,515 - 23,68,350
Total Assets 5,75,61,185 6,91,58,077 7.98,48,783
LIABILITIES AND EQU[TY
Liabilitics
TFinancial Liabilities 6
Deposits i 6.1 - - -
Other Financial Liabiliies 6.2 2,24.750 3,67.890 40,594,431
: - 324,750 3.67.890 30,94,431
Non-Financial Liabilities ‘ 7
Provisions. - 7.1 4,560,603 415,103 471,287
Deferred Tax Liabilitick (Net) 7.2 24,758,503 45,835,624 62,23,885
Other Non-Financial Laabilities 7.3 11,920 14,880 - 23,247
# ' 29.44,028 50,135,607 67,18,41% -
Equity 8 :
= Equity Share Capital 8.1 41,231,300 41,21,300 41,21,300
. Other Equity 8.2 5,02.71,106 5,96,33,280 6,49,14,634
o 5,43,92,4006 6.37,74,580 6,00,35,934
B Total Liabilities and Equity 5,75,01,184 6,91,58,077 7,08.,48,784
i Corporate Informatiof & Significant Accounling I’ohmes 1&2

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LD,

The Noles referied to a
In terms ot our report of

For D Basu & Co
Chartered Accoumptants

Firm Registration

ove form an intepral part of the accounts.
[even dale aftached herewith.

TOWER lNVE‘ST'dFNT & TRADING CO. LTD.

Fid L.

o Maatis TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING C

(ASHIS RANJAN MAITRA) f

- Partner n ) . -~
Membership No. 0546520 - TOWER HVESTHMENT 4 TRADING €O, LTD, Diractor
Place : Kolkata | oo T _) (M Q845712
Date : 30Th July 2020 PN

Company Secretary

Diragtor

i v d/}
‘ G BT TONER NVESTMENT & TRADING CO. 1D, 56 % 1 97410
f Financia! Cfficer N,
I, 301121E o |
| WholeTime Diractor
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TOWLER INVES TMENT & lRAD_]’_ﬂ_G i OM’P_ANV 1 IM'[TED
'CIN: L6712(}WB1981]’LC(}33300
’ Registered Office ;
‘Tt,rn ple Chambers’ 6, (1 Post Office Street, 4¢h Floor, Kotlata-700 001

l CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT &% LObb FOR TI YEAR FN'DFD 31‘3T MARCH 2020

[ Parsicwars Notes 2019-2020 20182019

. Bevenune from Operaiions 9

"Interest on oans 8,842,904 59,392

Profit on Sale of Investmerts iNet) 3,25,929 848,626

Dividend Income . 405271 409,896

S F Total Revenae from Operations 16,14,104 13,017,914
tht.r Income 1

2Service Lharocs 90,000 18,50,000

“Others - 101 1,46,6896 . 50,832

’ 2,36,696 - 19,001,832

- Total Ilyéome 18,50,800 32,18,746

" Expenses : ! :

Nei loss on fhir value changes| 11.1 1.0622 951 83,05,687

Employee Benefits Expenses [ 11.2 10,32,929 30,23 696

Depreciation and amartizationfexpenses 23 849 34,7533

(thers expenses i 113 12,00,837 24 02,031

Total lixpenses P 1,28,80,566 1,37,68,167

Profit Belore Exceptional Itdms & Taxes (1,10,29,766) {1,05,49,421)

Add : Exceptionzl Items . )

Unclaimed liability Written Bhek - 39,587,948

_ Profit Belore Tax (1,10,29,760) {65,61,473)
Tax Expense: 12

a) Current Tax : - 447 472

1) Deterred Tax {20.40.646) {16,32,959)

" ¢) Earlicr year 684,641 -

. {13,36,003} {11.85487)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year 946,73,761) {53,75,986)
o Shm-e o Profit from Associar:s Cumpany. {1,12,467) . {78,518)
Other Comprehensive Inconge ’
Jems that wifl not be rechassifed to profit or loss .

- Changes in fair value of Bquity & Other Financial hslrmm,nts 3.32,500 -

- Tax Fxpense relaling to above item (43,547} . (5,302)
Qiher Comprehensive lncome [for the Year 2,588,933 {5,302)
Total Comprehensive Incomp for the year ¢ (94,97,275) {54,60,116)
{Prafir+ Other Comprehensivd Income)

Earnings Per Equity Share ._ i 13

Basic & Diluled [ (23.04). (13.25)
.Cofporate Information & Sigfniﬁcant Accounting Folicies 1&2 .

First Time adaption of Ind AS . 3

Accompanying notes to thelfinancial statements 4 to 20

The Notes referred to above fofm an integral part of the au,u,uunb.
In terms of our report of even « au, d[tdbhbd herewith.

.Fl.l!' D. Basu & Co.
Charlered Accouniznis A
Tirm Registratior No. 30111 E

|
Azl R“’*Jﬂ% i
Pariner i
Membership No. 056520
Pluce : Kolkata

Date : 30Fh July 2620

%ML\O_ Tl
Company Secretary

TOWER INVEQTMFNT & TRADING CO. L1D.
Caelg Pt
Chief Financial Officer

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO, LTD.

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRAD G CO.LTD,

oIe- ime Dwector
Lrntol2oe) g

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING c;yym’.
? ¥

Direcmr
:) IN 00849577 2-
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CONSO

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
LIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Financial Year

Financial Year

. Membership No, 05

_ For D. Basu & Co. ;
- Chariered Accouont:

Firm Registration Iy

sy R

(ASHIS RANJAN MAITRA)

Pariner

Place : Kolkata

Date : 30Th July 2020

Ants )
o. 301111E

o bl

5520

For and Behalf of Board of Directors

_ Particulars Ended, 2020 nded, 2019

~ A. Cash Flow from [Operating Activities ' '

' Profit Before Tax} (1,10,29,766) (65,61,473)
Adjusiments for-:|

3 Exceptional Tlemsg - (39.87.948}
Provisions for Graluity 44,134 63,750

. Deprociation | . 23,849 34,753
Dividend Income| - ' (4,05,271) (4.09,898)
(Lialbilities)/Assels Written Off - 5,00,000
Profit on Sale of Investment (3,25,929) (8,48,626)
Net Chenge in Falr Market Value 1,06,22,951 83,05.687
Intcrost Received| S {8,82,904). (59,392)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (19,52,936) - (29,63,145)
Movements in Wirking Capital :
{Tncrease) / Decrdase in Financial & Other Assets (8,31,368) 13,82,406

- Increase /{ Decredse) in Financial & Other Liabilitics/Provisions 1,46,100) 2,46,960)
Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations (29.30,404) (18,27,699)
Diirect Taxes Paid (nct of refinds) 8,28 517 {3,35,811)
Net Cash flow frjpm / (used in) Operating Activities !21,00,887) (21,63,510)
B. Cash Flow from [Investing Activities
Sale Proceeds from Sale of Non- Current Tnvestments - -
Sale Proceeds fiofn Sale of Current Tnvestiments 1,37.75,604 3,42,68,289
“Purchase of Non-|Current Investments - (1,30,00,000) {2,20,97.851)
Intercst Received| ' 8,82,904 39,392
Dividend Income : '4,05,271 4,09,896
Net Cash from / {used in) Investing Activities 20,63.779 1,26,39,727
. Cash Flow from [Financing Activities )

Tnorease / (Decredise) in Long-term loans and advances 10,00,000 {1,29,00,000)
Tncrease / (Decredse) in Short term borrowings : : -
Net Cash from / [used in) Financing Activities ~10,00,000 . (1,29,00,000)
‘Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 0.62,852 (24,23,783)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year 14,21,020 38,44,803
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 23,83,911 14,21,020

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD,

ole-Timé Director
DN 01200 2F]

TOWER INVESTMENT &__TRADch ...L'.FB‘ .

Director
binop8qTF Y2

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

Rt bl . .

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LT,
osho. Trin.

Company Secretary

 TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

Y’z T
Chlef Financial Officer : Lo
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.’l‘OWE_R INVESTMENT & TRADING C_O_J_\jiI.P,égmf LIMITED

- CIN: L67120WB1981PLCO33500 _
TR Repistered Office _
“Lemple Chambers® 6, O1d Post Office Street, 4th Fleor, Kelkata-700 (01

Significant Accounting Policics

1

22

General Information

Tower Invstment & Trading Company Limited (the 'Company'} is a public limited Company, incorporated and doniiciled in
India, Thefequity shares of the Company are listed on The Caleutta Stock exchange. The registered office of the Corpany is

lacated al

"Temple Chamber), 6 Old Post Office Stroet 4t Floor , Kolkata 700001, West Bengal, India.

The Comphay is mainly engaged in real estaie activity and investment in shares and securities.

The functiynal and prosentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupes (“INR”Y which is the currency of the primary

economic

The finan
JSSHE On

Lnviropment in which ihe Company operates.

ial stafements for the vesr ended 31 March 2020 wers approved by the Board of Directors and aulhorised for
30 July 2020. : .

. Signilicant Aceounting Policies

The signiljeant accounting policies applied by the Company in (he preparation of its Consolidated foameial statements are-
listed beldw. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presenfed i these Tinancial

i)

ii) -

i)

- giatcments unless otherwise indicated.

" Busis of ppeparation

Compliance with Ind AS )

These  financial stalements have heen prepared 10 comply in all material aspeots with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) niotified under Section 133 of the Companies Act , 2013 { the Act), Companies ( Indian
| Accounting Standards ) Rules, 2015 and Compaics { Indian Accounting Standards } Amendment Rules, 2016]
and other relevant provisions of the Act. . Co

The Company had been proparing ils financial statements upto the year 31 March 2019, as per Companies
. (Aceounting Standard) Rules, 2006 and other relevant provisions of the Act (hereinafter referred to as Previous

| Gaap/mdian GAAP).

These financial statements arc the first [inancial statements of the Company under Ind AS, for an explanation of
how the transition frem provious GAAP to lnd AS has affected the Company's financial position , financial
performance and cash flows.

)

. Classification of current and non - current

All assets and fabilities have been classified as current or non -current a8 per the-Company's normal opcrating
eyele and other criteria sel out in the Ind AS1- Presentation of Financial Statemends and Scheduls 11 to the
Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nnture of product / sorvice and (he time between the acquisition of assels
for processing and (heir realisation in cash and cash cquivalenls , the Company has ascertained its operating
cyelc as 12 months for the purpose of current / non - current classification of asscts and Habilitics.

Classification of current and non - current -
These financial slatements have been prepared in accordance with the generally aceepted accounting principles
" in India under the historical cost ponvention except for the following : )

Estimated of uncertainiiies relating (o the Global health pandemic from COV 1D-19

The Comjpany has considered the possible effects that may resull from the pandemic relafing to COVID-19 on the carying

wmounts

f receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating lo the

possible fjuure uncertainties in the global cconomic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of

approval

£ these financiaf statements has used internal and external sources of information inchuding credit reports and

related information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumpiions used and

based on
Company

burrent estimates 'expects the carrying wwount of these asscts will be recovered. The impact of COV1D-19 on the
s financial statements may differ from that estimated, as at the date of approval of these financial §




Use of els'imdtes and critieal accounting judgemenis
In prepargtion of the financial statements, the Company mskes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying

amounts §f assets and liabiliies that arc net readily apparcnt from other sources. The estimates and the associated
assumplios are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from thesq cstimates. '

The eslimbics and the underlying assumptions are revicwed on un ongoing basis. Revisions l¢ accounting estimales, are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods alfected.

This note provides an overview of ihe arcas that involved 2 higher degree of judgement or complexity , and of items which
arc more Mkely 10 be matcnally adjusted duc fo estimates and assumption turing oul (¢ be different than those ungmaily
assessed | :

1) Estimated fair value of un.lisi.ed secnrities

ii} Recogrtion of deferred tax asscts for carried forward tax losses

Prupi:rly Plant & Equlpmml .
CAll jtemns [ol property , plant and eqmpmcnt are staled at hisiorical cost less depreciation | Historical cost includes
cxpcnditmlc that is dircctly attributable Lo the acquisition of the items. :

Subsequert costs are included i the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separatc asser, as appropriate , only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow o The company and the cost of the item can be
measured feliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a scparate asset is derecogniscd when repluced.
Al offier fepairs and maintenznce are charged to statement of’ profit or loss during the reporting poriod in which they are
meurred. | ’ ’ i

Depreciation s provided on Written down value method over the estimated useful fives of the asscis. Pursuant to
Notificatidn of Schedule II of the Companics Act, becoming effective , the Company has adopted the useful lives as per the
lives specified for the respective fixcd assets in the Sc.hedulc 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Gams and|losses on disposal of property, plant and equipmcu[s recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

An impairment loss is recognised where applicable when the canrying amount of property, plant and equipment cxceeds its
recoverable amount, i

Transitioft to Ind AS
On transilfon to Ind AS , the Company has elected to continuc with thc carrying value of all of its property, plant and

 equipinent recognised as at 01 April, 2018 measured as per (he previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of allfthe property , plant and equipment .

_ Financiat|Instruments

Financial gssets and livancial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities arc indtially mensured at [air valuc. Transaction costs that are directly
attributablE (o the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilitics (other than finumcial asscts and financial
liabilities. gt fair valus throngh profit or loss)are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial gsset or fnancfsl liability, The tremsaction costd directly attributable to the acquisition of [inancial assets and
financial Uabilities al fair valuc through profit and loss arc immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.”

Fifective [nferest method

The effeclive inferest method is ¢ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest ingome or expense over {he velevant period. The effeciive inforest rate is the rale that exactly discounts fulure cash
receipts off payments through the expected life of the fnzmeial mstrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
: i

Do Financial Assets
| “Fhe financial assets are classified n the following categerics:

@) Financial assets measured ol amortiscd cost,
| b) tinancial asscts measured at fair vatue through profit and loss ( FYTRL), and

¢) financial assels measured at fair value througl other comprehensive meome ( FVOCI).

1he classification of [inaveial assets depends on the Company’s business model for managing finuncial assols

and the contraciual lerms of cash flow, ’ )

Financial asscts measured at amnrfised cost

| Assets that arc held Tor collection of coniraclual cash flows where those flows ropresent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured al amortised coast, After imilial measurement . such financial assots are
subsequently measured af amorlised coast using the effective inicrest rate method . The losses arising from
impairment aie recognised in the Statement o[ Profit & Loss. :

Trade receivables arc recogmised titially al fair value and subsequently. measured at amortised cosl using th
elfective iftterest method less provision for impainment, if any.




T

2.6

LEmployct

{a)

- approximates fair value to short- term naturily of these instruments.

" sorvices up to the end of ihe reporting period and arc measured at the smoouts expected Lo be paid when the 4 F

"Financial mslmments measured at FVTPL
. Financial instoyments incladed witlin FV1PL category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period

- at Tair value_ plus transaction cosis as applicable. Fair value movements are recorded in Statement of Profit &

Financial assefs «t FVOCT

| Financial assets are mcaswred at FVOCT if these Financial assets are held within a business model whose
- objective is achieved by both collecting contraciual cash flows and sclling finangial asscts and the contractual

terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount cutstanding,.

LEquity instruments

The company measures all equity investments at fair value. The Company's management has lected to present
fair valuc gain and losscs bn equity instrumeiis in other comprohensive income , and aceordingly there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses Lo profit or loss. Dividends from such invesiments are
recognised in profit or loss as other income when (he Company’s right to receive payment is established.

De- recognition of financial assets

| The company de- recoghises a financial asset when the contrﬂulual rights to the cash llows for the financial

assets oxpires or it transkor the financial assets and such transfer quahilc'«'. for de- recognition under Ind AS 109-
Financial instruments.

. All Investmenis other than those disclosed otherwise are carried at cost Tess accunlated impairment: losses, if

any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of (he investment is assessed and is writien
dowwn 1mmed1utely Lo ita recoverable amount, On disposal of such investments, (he difference between net
disposal ]JI’OL.deS and the carrying amounts are recoguised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assess on a forward looking basis the expected crodit losses associated with its assets carried at

[ amortised cost. The fmpairment methodology applied depends en whether there hus been a significant increase

in credit risk.

Only for ‘Frade receivables , the implied appraach of life time expected credit losses is recognised from initial
reeognition of the receivables as required by nd AS 109- financial instruments.

Tmpairment loss allowsnee tesognised / reversed during the year is charged / written back tg Stalement of Profit
& Loss. '

Tinanciak liabilities _ _
Financial Habilitics are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Bomowings are initially Tecoguised at fair value , net of transaclion costs curred . Botrowings are

subscquently measured al amortised cost. Any difference between (he proceeds ( net of transaction costs) and
" the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the burrowmg'a using effective micrest
method.-

Borrowings are classilied as current Habililies ahless the company has an unconditional tight to defer settlement
of the liabilily for at Icast 12 monéhs alicr the reporting period. Where there is a breach of 3 material provision

| of a long lerm foan arrangemert on or hefore the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability

becomes payment on demand on the reporting date , the entity does not classify the liability as current , if the
lender ugreed, aftor the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for issuc , not to
demand payment as a consequence ol the breach.

For Trade and other peyables maturing within one vear from the balance shect date , the carrying amount

Derecognilion of financial liabikties
‘T'he Company dercengnises financial liabslities when, and only thn the Company's obli gatmns are dischar gch

cancelled ot they cxpire.

benefits
Short-term ohligations

- T.ighilitics for wages, salaries and other benefits thul are cxpected to be setfled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees rénder the related service arc recognised in respect of employees”

linbilities arc settled. The Lisbilities arc presented: as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,
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2.10

: Dcfcr-rcd

. Defarred |

© and the sp

¢b)

Provisiog
Provision

Post employment obligations '
Defined contribution plans

‘The Company makes comliibutions to government administered provident lu11d scheme, cmployes state
insurance scheme and pension fund scheme for the employees. The Company has no further payment
cbligations once the contributions have been paid. The coatributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when ibcy arc due,

Cumpcnsﬁted absences

Accumulated compensated absences and gratuity liability, which are expected to be availed or envashed or
_vontribuled within the 12 months from the end of the year are reated as short lerm emiployee benefits and the
balances cxpeated to be availed or encashed or contributed beyond 12 months from the year end are {reated as
long term liability and are sccounted on indiscounted basis.

QOiher short term employce benefits
Short term employee benefits are recognised ws an expenses as per the Company's schemes bused on the

expected obligation on an undiscounted basis.

§ .
are reoognised in the balance shest when the Company has a present obligation (icgal or constructive) as a result

of & past pvent, which s expected to result in an outflow of Tesources embodying coonomic benefits which can be reliably

cstimated|
halance s

lacomne t:
| 1w 1o

applicable
temporary
The curre)

Each provision is based on e best estimale of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
cet date. '

Xe8
NG tax expenise of credit for the pertod 15 the 14X payabls on the cuircat period's taxable 1pcome based. on the

income tax rate. for each jursdiction adjosted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabiliies aitributable fo
dilferences and to unused iax losscs. :
1t Incume tax charge is caloulated on the basiz of the tax laws enacted or subslantively cnactcd at the cnd of the

reporting period.

Deferred
a55els and
1eferred
the report
tax [iahili

and whei
where the|
settle the )
Current al
comprete|

in equity,
Revenue
cat be re
consideras
duties col
The Comy
Income r

a)

b}

neome 1ax is provided in full, ur;mg the liability meihud OnL lem]mlary difiercuces arising between the tax bases of
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the finencial stalements.

ncame tax is detératined using tax rates (and Jaws) that have boen enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
ng period aind are expected 1o apply when the related dcfcrred income tax asset 1s realised or the dederred income

y is setted.

ax assets and liabilities arc offsct when there is a legally enforceable right ko offvet current tax asscts and liabilities
ihe deferved tax balances rclate to the same taxation anthority. Current tax assefs and tax Habilities are offset
entily has a legally enforeeable right to offsct and intends either to settle on a net basis, or lo realise the asset and

iabilily simultaneously,
hd deferred tax is recogmised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to ilems recognised in other

hsive income or directly in equily. In this case, Ihc tax Is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
espectively. :

fably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair valoe of e
ion received or receivable nel of discounts, laking info acconnt contractually defined terms and excluding laxes or
ecied on behalf ofl‘he govemnment,

Revenue ]< recognised to the extent that it is probatle that the ceonomic benefits will flow to the C@h}p‘any and the revenue

any basis its eslimale on historical results taking Into wnqldmatmn the type of customers, the type of transactions
ecifics of cm.h wTangements

s,

kcognition
Real Esate Activitics .
Revenue in respect of real estale activily are reeognised when it can be mcasurcd reliably and the blamhcam

Intercst ineome
Interest income is acciued on a time proportion basis, by reference lo the principal outstanding and the effective

[ interest rate applicable.

Service Income
Income from serviee is recognised when the service has been rendered as pet terms of the contract.

ax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary diffcrences and wiused tax losses only il it is probable that
. future taxhble amounts will be availalile to utilisc those temporary differences and losses. '

Y
. N
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a)

DlVldend Inwmu
Dividend inconte from mvcstmcuts 18 rccogms.ed when the shareholder's rights o receive payment have heen

cb_fd.b].lSth

Segment ieporting

Since, (he-
Operation

Ef'lrnings

Company docmot have any reporting scgement in ils business line and Compayy is cngaged i single se&ement of
hence Bo Scgment reporling is applicable to it.

per share

Bamings frer share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or Joss for the year attributable to equity share hc!dcrq by the

" For the 1

: weighted gverage munbers of squity shares oulstanding durmg the year. .

n'pme ‘of caleulating diluted carnings per bharc the nel profie or loss [ur the period attributable Lo equlty

shareholdgrs and weighicd average number of shares entstanding during the period are adfusted for the offects of all dilutive
poteniial € ]uuy bharus,

Cash. and

Cash Equiv: alents

In the Cash [low stalement , Cash and cash cqmv‘dcmb inchide cash in hand and balance with bank fn current account.

Offsettin
Financial

Financial mslruments
hesets and lisbilitics are offset and the net amonnt is reported in the balance shoct where there-is a legally

enforceablp right to offset the recognised amounts and the there is an intention 1o scttle on 4 net basis.or reakise the asset and -

settle the

fiability subsequently. The legally enforcenble right must not be contingent ou future events and must be

enforceablis in the normal course of business mnd 1w event of default , insolvency or bankruptoy of the company or the

counter pagly.

Contingegt Liabilities

Jdabilities

_ contingen

which are ‘material and whose fulure outcome capnol bc ascertained with reasonable certainty are g
and disclosed by way of noles lo the acwunts




TOWLER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO\H’AN)‘ L1MIFED

“CIN: L67120WB19811__’LC_033500

Registered Office
‘Temple Chambers® 6, _Olcl Past Olfice Street, 4ih Floor, Kolkata-700 001

3 First (line :adonting. of Ind AS - .

Ihese Consolidate

i financial statemenis of Tower [mvestment & [rading Co.Limited for the year ended March, 31, 2020 have been prepared in

accordance with Ifd A8, For the purpeses of trafisition to Ind AS, the Company has followed the puidance preseribed in Ind AS 101 - First Time

“adoplion of Tndian

The transition to I

b coounting Standard, with 1st April, 2018 as the transilion date and Indian GGAAP as the previous GAAR

4 AS has resulled in changes in the presemtation of the financial statemants, discloswres in Lhe notes there to and accounting policies

and principles. The accounting policiss sei ot in'Note 2 have been applied in preparing the separate finanucial statements for the year endéd 315t March,
2020 and the compptative information. An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has effocied the Company’s Balance Shest,

Statement of Proflt]
out inNoie 3.1,

and Loss is explained in Note 3.2. E};\.mptlons on ﬁrsl time adoption of Tnd AS availed in dccordance with Ind AS 101 have been set

3.1 Exemptions avml:d on first time adaption
Ind-AS 101 -allows] firsl-time adopters cetlain excmptlcms from the retrospective application of certain reqmmmcnts under Ind AS. The Company T

accordingly apphied the following exemplions.

(2) Lstinvales
Ind AS 101 provi
transition shall be

es that an entity's estimates a3 per Ind AS § "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounitng Fstimates and Errors” at the datc of
- omsistent with the estimates made for same date {ir accordances with previouns GAAP, unless there is objective evidence that those

cstimates were in efror.

Accordingly, the of

spany has made Ind AS eslimales as at the transition date ic. Ist April 2018 which are consistent with catimates mads by it under

the previous GAAR for the same date. The company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS al the date of transition since these
were not required yndar previous GAAT ;

i Tnvesty

nent in ungnoted equity instruments designatsd at Fair Value through OCt

ii} Investipent in quoted equity instraments and mutual funds designated al Fair Value through l’mm & Loss

THD Iresh)
iv} Tmpair]

3.2 Reconciliations be
The following reco|
) Eguity az at Lst

by Net Prafit for th

a) Reconciliation of B

hent in subsidiary companies and an asseciate compary is considered at carrying value as per revious GAAP,
fneni of [inancial assets based on expected credit toss modat
i

tween previons GAAP and Tnd AS :

hcitialions provide the effect ol iransition o ind AS from previous GAAP i accordance with nd AS 101:
b pril, 2018 and as at 31st March, 2019

year ended 31st Marel, 2019,

ity as at 15t April, 2018 and as at 315t March, 2019,

‘Motes to Asat’31 March  Asat1 April 2018
tirst time 2019 )
: ) adoption ) _ .
Equity under previpus GAAP - ' . 3,12,48 788 " 2,98,15 518
Adjustments;-
Cliange in Fair walvation af Financial Instruments . ' o1 3,75,11.758 4,58,17.445
Delerred tax adjpstments : 2 {6994 079 _ (62,78,567)
Provision for Grptuity } 3 ©{3,82.212) (3,18,462)
Other Adyusiments ) ) - 23,90,325 -
Equity wnder Ind 4S5 : 6.37,74,580 6,90,35,534
1) Reconciliation.of tptal comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March, 2019
Notes to-first 2018 -2019
tinie adoption )

Profit{Luss) afier
Adjustiments
Change in Fair

 Deferred Tax adjustments
Proviston for Grptuity

Oiliey Adjustein
Total comprehens]

¢) There ars no matcy

X s per pravious GAAP {9.,95,941)

aluation of Financial Instruments, 1 {83.10,989)
2 16,32,959
3 (63,750

£ty 4 2277605

be income as per Ind AS {54,60,116)

ol adjustments to the statenents.of cash Qows as reparted under the prcviou's CAAPR,




™

&) Notes to first tim

Note 1 : Change
- Under the previo

roalisation. Long-{

these [nvestments

Fair value changcs
" have been recogni
other comprehens:
bpril, 2008 7 5,17 Lacs)

March, 2019 {Lst

3 adap tion

. Fair V'!lllatmrl of Financial Insiriments

s GAAP, investments in equity instrinnents were classitied as long term fnvestuents based on the intended helding petiod and
erm investmonts were cprried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the value of such investments. Under Ind AS,
are equited to bo measured at fafr vatue at each reporting peried.

with respect o invesiments in equity instrument & preference shares are designated al fair valuo tirough OCI and at amortised cost
wed in Hyuity Investment Reserve and in Net loss on fair value changes respectively as at (hg date of transition and subsequently in
ves income & Net loss an fair value changes for fhe vear ended 31st March 2019, This increased ather reserve by * 5.19 Lacs ag at 315t

Coasequent to thel above, the tolal equity as at 31st March, 2019 increased by * 32525 Lacs (lst April, 2018 7 392.20 Lacs) and total compichensive

ingome for the year

ended 315t March 2019 increased by 0,53 Tacs (150 April, 2018 * 5,15 lacs).

Note 2 i Peferred Tax Adjastments
Tax adjustments felating to above adjustments are wwgmscd and acllubted, in retained earnings on the date of transmuu Deferred tax adjustments

relating ta the yeay ended 3st Mmh, 2019 have been adjusted in the stalement of profit and less for the said year.

MNoled: Provisim

Provision [or Gratpiity ars recognised and wdjusled in retained t:ﬂrmngs on the date of transitien for the year cuded 3]st March 2019,
April2018 3.18 Liacs) - .

for Gratuity




Noles to Financi

Statements (Contd.)

TOWLER INVESTMENT & TRATING COMPANY LIMITED,

AS AT ASAT
3L.03.2019

AR AT
0.04.2048

31.03.2020

8 - BOUITY
8.1 EQUITY SHAREICAPITAL

" Aulhorised |
10,00,000 Equity. shares of "1 0~ gach

1,00,0,000 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

41,21,300 41,21,300 £1,21,300

4,12,130 Fauity shiires of * 1% cach fully paid up

a) Details of sharehojders holding more than 5% of the Equily Shares in the company: .
o ) ~As uf 31.03.2020 As al 31.03,2019 As at 01.04.2018

Name U_l Shalrehﬂ.ﬂ&l Moz, %hf_!]d'[n,é Mo, “’/r;-imlﬂiug NUS ) % holding]
Shyurya Veer L bl . 63,002 15.31% £3,092 £330y 1 63,092 15.31%
[Burlington lovesimenty Privite Limited 36,570 T42% 30,570 7.42% 30,570 ) 7.42%!

- | khatu Xnvestment & Trhding Co. Ld. o 64,138 15.56% 64,138 15.56% £4,138 15.56%
New Loak [vestmont Penzal Limited 74104 17.68%[ | 74104 "~ rrosv| 11 Hles | 17.98%
Mr. Rakash Kowar Shajarya Vear _ - 23,500 5779 | 2800 5.77% 23,800 5T7%
Gautav Himasinglika & Dipak Kt Himatsingka _ . 31576 ] T.61%| | 3L3T6 SR N LD C 1561%

B) Term/Rights atiached to Equity Shares:
The compaity has hitly ane class of equily shaies having a par value of “10/~ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share. The
Company declarcs fmd pays Dividend i Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dirertors is subject to ilie dpproval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual Geparal Mecling, ) )
In the cvenl of Tiguidation of the company, the halders of equily shares will be entifled 10 receive remaming asssls of the company, afier distribution of all
preferential ametnds, The distribution will be in proportion 1o e number of equity shares fld by the shaveholders.

ARAT ' ASAT ASAT
8.2 OTHER EQUIT! : ; 31.03.2020 31 .03.2_'019 I]LU4._Z|JI 8_
a) Reserve Pund- (A per RBI Guidelines
Balance as per last focount .o 9,55,405 5,29.365 529,365
Add: Transfer from| Stalement of Frofit 8 loss ) - 426,040 ) -
’ I 0,55,405 9,55,405 5,298,305
b} Capilal Reserve L
Badance as per lust Aceoant | 2.04,%0,549 204,590,549 204,590,549
Add: Transfer from Statement of Profil & loss ) - - -
.2,04,90,549 2.04,90,549 | 2.04,90,549
C) Retuined Farniog} !
General Reserve i ’ L - - . - hall
Surplus/{Deficit) ip the Statement of Profit and Loss :
Balanes as jrer iast Pecount 3,76,98,013 4,33.80,104 433,850,104
Add: Protit(Loss) fur 1he year . (56,73.761) {33.75.986) -
Add: Transfer fron] Bquity Investnient Reseeve upaen realisation - - -
" Less: Transfer to Regsprve Fund - (4.26,0407% -
 Less: Transfer fo Cpntingent Provision against Stndard Asscls 2,634 . 1,159,534 -
: 2,80,26,845 3,76,98,013 4,33,50,104
"Tata} Retained Earings 4,94,72,839 5,91,43,967 6,44,00,018
¢} Equity Investment Re_sal'v.c
- Ag per kst Aecount . 509,314 . 5140160 : -
Changes i1 fair valje of equity instriments 2,88,953 (5,302) 814,616
Less: Transter 1o Rftained Bamines upon realisation : - - -
) . : 7,948,267 5.09,314 514,616
TOTAL 5,02,71,108 5,96,53,280 6,49,14,634

Mature of Reserves:

Reserve Yund- {AS per RB1 guidelines) .
Reserve Fund reprysents 4 stanttory provisicns croated as per the RBI guidelines applicable for NBFC Conpanias,

Equity Investment Reserve : ' : .
This reserve represnts the cumubative guins and Josses arising on the rovalualion of equity & other finaneial instrusents measured at fair walug fluough
comprehensive incdine, net off amounts reclassified 1o retained earnings when those assets hive been disposed off.
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- " - . . I
TOWER INVESTMUENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

E\Tptes to Financial Statements ’ . Co . : ) .
T N . As at As at As at

- i ' : 31.03.2020 31.03.201% _01.94.2018
"4 FINANCIAL ASSETS . - * .
244 CASH AND CASH EQL I_VALEN_TS
* " Cash o Hand o ; 13,173 _ 336 252
Balance with-Scheduled Binks in Current Aceount . ) 23.70,738 14,20.484 38,444,551
o : : : 23,583,911 - 14,21,020 38,44,803
4.2 RECEIVABLES
;\‘._" {Unsecured, considered gopd) : ) ] :
4.2.1 Trade Reccivables o : . ' - 1,05,244 45,501 §,22,000
422 OtherRecelvables (% | : ' 345,008 53,853 3,62.959
[} includes due from a ,dr' varie limited company i which divecior is a a’:‘rer:!orl i ' - S -
43 LOANS . .
: (Unsecured, considered gopd) ) ks
Al Amortiscd Cost (In India)
cha}?ablc on Demand
- To a Related Party : ) : . - : - 50,000
- Ta Others : ) . 1,21,02,700 1,31,02,700 1,52, 704}
' ' 1,21,82,700 1,31,02,700 2,02,700
4.4 INVESTMENTS (Refer sote No. 20)
" InlIndia : ’ ;
A At Historical Cos
i) Ouoted: - ) _
- In Tully puid up Equily Sharcs of an Associgte Coinpany . _ o 2,16409 3,28.876 407,773
y o oo 216409 328876 407,773
- i) Unquoted: . _ .
- 4} In Fully paid up Tquity Shareg ol an Associate Company ' ' - - -
1) In Fully paid up Fquity Shares of Subsidiary Company: ' : . - ) - -
. ] : | - - —
(B)AL Amortised Cost
- -
- _ ] - - - _
Q) ACRVOCT '
. {)Uinguoted: : )
© e iy In Fully paid up Equity Shares of Com panies: C : : . 14,778,000 11,45,500 16,45,504)
‘ [1v) 14,78,000 16,45,500

&




" Nufes to Financial Statements ({-ontd.)

= . .

(AL EVIPL
v D) .Quoted: .
=~ - In Fully paid up Equity Shares of Companies : : ) ) ' 3.03,90,649 3,90,58,605 $.73,77,901
Lt i} i_Tnguotgi i : o
", 1iIn Units of Mutual Fund, ) 93,63,787 1.19,68.947 2.24 847606
¥ v 3,99,54,435 51027612 6,98,62,668
R _ NIHITHIVAY] 4,16,48 844 5,25,01,988 7,19,15,941
Less? Drovision for Dimingtion in vaiue of Invesiments : - - ’ - -
) _ 4,1:6,48,844 5,25,01.988 719,315,941
Aggregate amount of Quaged Investments and market value thereaf . ' . 3.06,07,057 3.93,87,541 4,77.85,675
Ageregale amount of Ungrioted Investmenty : ' . 1,10,41,787 1,31,14,447 2,41,30,266
As at As at . Asat
31.03.2020 31032019 0LO4.2018
4.5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - o : , : - -
- . Security Deposit i . ) - : 20,000 20,000 20,000
- Qther Reccivable . ) : . ) 1,41,690 - 10,500 3,12,021
~1,61,690 30,500 332,021
5 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
5.1. CURRENT TAX ASSEFS (NET) . :
! 118,801 16,32,939 19,68, 771}

Taxation Advance & Refundabies (Net of Provisions)

1,158,501




Notes io Filla:lcial Statements (Contid,)

5 2 INVESTMENT PROPQ{_TIES _ . .
e Office at Bverest House ((fonsidering the date of pur.- 07.04. 95) } N C 11,50,000 11,530,000 . 11,50.040
* {Considerng this as part of Building with RCC structure} o :
(Rcsidual Value - 5% 0f 11,50,000==57, SOO Usefl Life 60 Yrs)
+*  Add: Addition in Gross Vilue : : : - ' - -

= . _ _ ) “11,50,000 11,530,000 11,5U,UUU
Less: Sales £ Adjusiments. _ ) - -
Clusing Gross Value of Asket : 11,30,000 11,50.000 11,590,000
. Depreclatmn i _ ' i . . .
Opening ]_)eprcudhon ] : : 7,904,399 775411 TI5411
Deprociation @ 5.069% o the year o - : S ' 18,025 18,938 _
- Total Accumulaled deprocation : . : ' ‘ 812424 7,94 399 T340
- Opening WDV : ' - . - : 3,55,600 3,74,589 374,585
Closing WV - i 337576 -3,55,601 3,74,58Y
54 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSTTS
Prepaid Expenses - - - ' -
Q_ther Advinces o . ) ) o 3,54,000 4720 - )
' : 354,000 ~ 4,720 -
6 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES _
.1 DEPOSITS .
' Security Deposits - - - -
62 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
* Other Payable . ) P i ) - 2,24.750 3,67,890 4094 431
7  NON-FINANCIAL LIARILITIES
7.1 PROVISIONS _ . _ _ ,
- Contingent provision against Standard Assets o . . . 30,257 32,891 1,52,825
Provision for Griployee Banelits- Gratuity _ 426,346 3,82,212 3,18462
: : _4,56,603 4,15,103 4,71,287
. 7.2 'DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET}
& Deferred Tax Assel{Liabiity) relating to: )
" - Deprceiation on Property), Plant and Equipment ' 4 . .- ) - -
- Financial Instruments mdasurcd at Fair Value i ) 51,227,433 270,93,454 85,16,018
N - Unabsorbed Losses ) _ (24,98,227) {23,57,193) (22,10,129)
[ - Unabsorbed Depreciatiop . . ) (42,851 . (31,262) =
- Finployee Benefil : _ : _ (1,140,850 {99,375} (82,0414)
. : 24,75,508 45,85,624 62,23,885
7.3 - OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES . - .
- Statutory Dues ) : : 11,520 14 88(), mmrrmm = 23,247

]




 Notesto Financial Statements (

10
103

113

. Listing Fees

12

" u) Carrent Tax
. Provision For Incorne Tax]

" On financigl agscts measn

: Othel's

. EXPENSES.

' EMPLOYEE BENEFIT]
_ Salary, Bonus and other a

-Rates and Taxcs
 Tiing Fees,
. Legul & PProfessional Chn

- Ingarance Premiumt

lntcn'.est Income

Contd.)

' REVENUE FROM OPHRATIONS ¢

On Loans .
On Fixed Deposits

OLHER INCOME

Interest: . .
On Security Deposits
On Ineome Tax Refund

T.ong term Gain On sale o
$hort term gain on sale of
Sundry Balances Written

NET LOSS ON FAIRV
- On Quoted Bquity Sha

Sialt Welfare Expenses

OTHER EXPENSES

Establishment Charges

Service Charges
Travelling & Conveyance
Printing & Stationery
Auditors' Remuneration;
Tar Statutory Audit
Tor Qiher Services

Advertisement Expenscs

Membership Subscription|
" Postage & Teléphone Exp)
- Manageent Tees on PM

. Repair and Maintenance C

Assets Wrilten off
T.ong Term Loss on PMS
Misccllaneous expenses

TAX EXPENSES

Income Tax Adjustments

b) Deferred Tax
Delerred Tax Adjustmenly

ed al amortised cosl

Equity .
{nvestouet{Net)
ff

l.
WVLULE CHANGES
5 & Mutual Funds

5 EXTENSE
OWAINCEs

ues

Hund
hargres

et -

2019-2020 2018-2019
8,82,504 50392
8,582,904 56,392

1,649 5,773
7013

38,046

200 _
1,46,696 50,432

| 1,06,22,951 83,05,687

10,29,314 30,25,696
3,615 -
10,32,920 30,235,696
46,004 46,040
36,800 7.00,860
1.78,950 1.25348
72,000 72,000

5,109 45,762
. 2,72,712
7,136 2,42,106
2,641 -
25,940 49,440 .
68,249 -
53,100 17,700
13,516 -
1,26,886 125,830
89.966 90,968
- 5,00,000
361,174 3,544
L1336 105717
12,00,837 24,02,031
- 4,47.472
6,84,641 .
6,84,641 447471
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BARNINGS PER SHARE )
The eaming per shate las|besn calowluled us specificd in Ind-A5-33 on "Eatnings Por Share” prescribed by Companic:

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

~Nates to Finaneial Statements (Condd.)

s {Accomiting Staindards} Rules, 2015 and related

" disclosures wre as below: e
Taor, Cnlcuhlliug Basic & Piluted earnings per share 2092020 “2018-2019
@) Profis attributalilc to Gouily holders of the Campnay (54,97,275) (34,60,116)
b) Weiphted Average number of ¢quity sharcs used as a denominator 412130 412130
in calcubaling FPS (Nos.) : : ' '
c) Busic & Diluted TPS (a/p) _ _ : ' (23.04) (13.25)
. : ;.
FINANCIAL INS TRUMENTS
Financial Insiruments by category
The carrying value of finaniel istrudionts by categories as on 31st March, 2020 dre 5 follows: .
: ) {* in Lacs}

‘Tair Value through

Particulars the Yrofit & Loss Fair Vﬂlur_} ihrengh Amortised Cost Total carrying -Total Fair
. Reference ocCl valie Yalue
Financial Asscts . . :
|Cash & Cash Guivalents 4.1 - - 23.84 2384 - 23.84
Trade Receivables 2.1 - - 1.05 1.05 1.03
Other Receivalles 422 - : - 345 3.45 3.45
[1.0ans 43 7 5 - ' - B A 12103 121.03
lnvesinwcnis N ' . :

- Eguily Instrumicnts 4.4 399,54 14.78 2.16 " 416.49 416,49
Chiher financial dssets 4.5 - : - 1.62 1.62 1.62
Totxl Financiai Assets 399.54 14.78 153.15 567.47 567.47
Tinancial Liabililiés _ . _

Deposits & ) - : - - - -
Other fingncial labiiities &2 - - 2.25 2.253 223
Total Financiat Liabilitic ; - - 2.25 223 2.28
The carrying value of finankial instru menis Ty categories as om 31st March, 2019 arc as tolows:

[ - { in Lacs)

Fair Valug through -
Fair ¥alue through

Total earrying '

Total Fair

Nate 3 " :
arti " - -Profit & Loss nortiserl Cos
Particulars Reference ) oc1 . Ammortised Cost vitlue Value
Financial Assets ] :
Cash & Cash Equivalents | 4.1 - . - 14.2¢% 14.2] 14.21
Other Receivables 422 - - - - 0.54 0.54 0.54
Loans 43 . - - 131.03 131.03 13L.03
Investments
- - Hauity, Tnstruments 4.4 510.28 [1.46 3.29 32502 525.02
{Oher [nancial asscts 45 - ) - - - 0.3 . 03] 0.31
. ¥ : - -
Total Financial Asscts ) 510.28 _TE46 149.37 6711 G7L10
Finangial Liabilities . _
Deposits ’ 6.l - .- - - -
Other financial liabilitics 6.2 - - 3.68 EXT 3.68
‘Fotal Kinaneial Liabilitiey T - 3.68 3.68 3.68
The carrying valua of fnan) il instruments by calegories as on 15t April, 2018 are as follows:
- : . . . {" in Lacs)
T Note Fair Yalne through  Fair Valuc through e ., Total earrying Total Fair
Particulies Relerence Profit & Lass oCT - Amortised Cosé value Value
" |Financial Assets
Cash & .Cash Equivalents 41 - - 3845 38.43 38.45
Other Recoivables 4.2.2 . “ Co- 3.63 3.03 3.63
Loans 4.3 - . - 2.03 2,03 2.03 |
Invesiments . ) ’ )

- Bquity Insiruments 44 598.63 16,46 . 408 715,14 715.16
|Other financizl asseis 4.5 ' - - 332 332 332
|Total Financial Assets w9863 1646 5150 766.58 766.58
1Finaneial Liabilities . )

Depostis 6.1 . . - - - -
| Gther financial liabilities 6.2 . - ) - 40,94
Total Fimiuelal Liabilitie; - - 400,94
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14.3

" b) The fair val
“in-a current fpnsaction berween willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and

Fair value hie

N.utes to Finarx

Management

TOWER INVESTMEN: l & TR'&D[N(J C()MPA]\Y LIM]TED
cial Statements (Conid.):

bstimations and assumptions

a) The manage

largely due o t

d_b&.umpllons W
(i} The fair val

The following

nent assessed that cash and cash equivalents and other ourrent Ildbﬂmeq approximate their carrying amounts
1e short-term maturities of these instruments.

re of the finaneial asscts and liabilities 1s included at the amount 4t which tile instrument could be exchanged

nre used (o gstimate the fair values: -+
les of the quoted shares are based on price ¢ uotalions at the reporting date.

- (ii) The fair values of the ungquoted equily shares have been determined based on certifications from valuers who have used
Net Asset Valye approach for determining the fair values.

"arch"y

able presents the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -

. (" in Lacs)
: - Fajr value moasurement at end of the reporting
Particulars "~ Note ' period/year using
' _Reference Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ‘Total
As on 31st March, 2020
|Fimancial Assets _ _
Equity & Other Instruments 4.4 306.07 95.64 14.78 416.49
- . L . R
Ason 3lst Ma]fch, 2019 ) ' F
Financial Asscls
Equity & Other [nstrumoents - 4.4 393.88 119.69 1146  525.02
As on Ist April, 2018
Financial Assels _ _ _
Equity & Othef [nstruments 4.4 477.86 - 22483 16.46 _719.16

~The company's
reporting perio|

foresee the un

Level 1 Quote
Level 2 :
(1.¢. as prices)
Levef 3: Inputs]

The Company

performance. 1
additional overs
speculative pul

H Prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

nputss other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly

or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
for the assels or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs).

'poiiey is to tecognize transfers into and the transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the

. There are no transfers between level ¢ and level 2 during the end of the reported periods,

Financial Rislf Management

b activities expose it to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company tries fo

predictable nature of financial markets snd seek to minimise potential adverse impact on its financial
he semel management of the eempany Qversees th(. management ef ihese risks. The Audlt Commlttee has

pases may be u11de1'talceu




~ Notes to Financial §

tatemenis (Contd.)

N 15 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

.* * Related parties and 1
Companies (Accoun
with the company ah

a) Related Parties |

 the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

ransactions with (hem as specified in the lnd-AS 24 on “Related Parties Disclosures™ presribed under
ing Standards) Rules, 2015 has becn identified and given below on the basis of information available

Particulars N _
(i) Enterprises where control exists . el Relationship -
Saket Cément Progucts Private Limited . Subsidiary Company
(i) Associates & Joint Ventures Relationship

- Khalu Investmcnis &

_(1ii Individual owni
" their relatives

Trading Co. Limited

1¢ an interest in the voting power of the company and

W
. (iv Key Management Personnel and their relatives
Swarup Kunar Maig
Goutam Kumar Das
Varsha Tain
" (v) Enterprises over which any person
referred in (iii) ér (iv) is able to excreise -
: . N 4
¥
.-“gﬁ;q.m

Associate Company -

Relationship
Whole Time Director

CFO

Company Secretary




Nature of Trangactions

For the year e_n_dcd M’arcjh 31, 2020

For the year cnded Marc_:hé 1,2019

g
cn 1. -
Enterprises vver

which Key

Managerial Person)
| and their relatives

are able to
exarcise

iafes: Joj_nt_ .

B
Managemerit

Personnel and

Indiyiilu als

. owning an

interest in the
voting power

Associates, Joint

ventures and
Enterprises over
which Key

Managerial Person
| and their relatives
jare able to excrcise

Key
Management
Persormel and
Individuals
owning an
interest in the
voting power

~Varslia Jaln .

Lo _and their significant and their
significant 4. . .
\ - relatives influence relatives
. inflyence - - '

Expenses _
Salary, Bonus & [Other allowances
~Gouwtam Kumar as - 3,63,800 - 2.,83,904
|-Swarup Kumar Maity 1. - 2.71,260 - -
~Varshia Jain - 160,330 - -
Balance at Yean Beginning

- Loan _ _
-Goutary Kumar Das - 40,000 1 - -
-Swarup Kumar Maily - T - -
-New Look Investment (Bengal) Ltd. - - - 50,000

| Amouint Paid Dftring the Year

- Loan i
-Goutam Kumar [Das ' - 30,000 - 40,000
-Swarup Kumar Maity . - 25,000 - .-
-Intercst paid - , :
~New Look Invegtmcent (Bengal) Lid. - - - 3,995
Amount Repaid During the Year

-LOtm i
-Goutam Kumar |[Das _ - 30,000 -
~Swarup Kumar Maity . W - : - -
-New Look Investment (Bengal) Lid. - - 50,000 '
Balance at Yeay End
Amount Receivable

- Loan - :
-Goutam Kumar|Das - 30,000 - 40,000
-Swarup Kumar Maity - 25,000 - -
Balance at Yeay End
Amount Payable
Salary, Bonus &|Other allowances
-Goulam Kumar[Das - 30,400 - 30,400
-Swarup Kumar [Waity - - 24,660 - -

' ' - 20,000 - -




- Notes to Filla.n_cial Statements (Contd.)
 » 16 Particulars as 1'equ11t d in terms of Paragraph. 13 Of Non Banklng Financial (Noii - Deposit Accepting or Holdmg) Companies
Prudential Norms (Rescrve Bank) Directions, 2007 15 as per annexure.

g

“ 17 On the basis of physjcal verification Ofcl.‘:bb‘T,S as spcuf“ud in Ind-AS - 36 and cash gcnemtfon capacity of these assets, in the
management's percc:ptmn, there is no impairment of such assets as appearing in the balance sheet as on 31.03.2020.

- +18 a) Previous year figijres abcwe are given in brackeis
“b) Previous year figilre have bgen regrouped-rearranged, threver found nece%sal ¥

L Sigamture to Note "1 to 19"

© ForD. Basu & Co. For and Behalf of Board of Directors

. Chartered Accountants -
~ Firm Registration No. 301111E

»&5,{1,; c{{m%MMﬁ- h _

(ASHIS RAN JAN MATTRA) TOWER !NUESTMENT & TRAD_ING CO.LTD,

B -Partnu
\’Iembl.r\hnl\n 0536520 . AT
© Place : K Ili ¢ o . : o Whala-Time Director
o : Bolkaea . ) . ] - DFM\?OEQ—GOQ—S-I
Date : 30Th July 2020 ’ : i .
. ) co‘ LTQ‘

"TOWER INVESTHMENT & TRADI ¢

TOWER [NVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD.
~ Company Secretary '

Director
DN eoB49TFL

TOWER INVESTMENT & TRADING CO. LTD. TOWER INVESTHENT & TRADING CO. LTD.

S | G Lot Lot
e | |  Chief Finangjol Officer  ~ - :
| | | Director

Pw‘o%:rémm

<.r::~'*%': -




TOWER INVEST] MT\J’[ & LR\&I}I\TG (“()M]’\NY LIMITED
C]I\. L7 i

Ri.gmtc;dul Oiﬁu. .
¢ ImeIL Clhambers® 6, Old Post O['flLe Street, 4th Floor, l(ul{{.iid—'?(}ﬂ 'Ul]l

NOTES BORMINC PART OF THE T‘INAN( IAL STA ILMLNIS

733 DISCLOSURE REGARDI

NG SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOC: ATIS.

The disclosures relatéd to Su

Name of S.‘ub&iii:liiltj}_-‘.;r Assqc'

bubmdjar}'

“Saket C,embm Products Prl\fﬂlb Linited

' A ssociates _
Khati: Investment & Trading

© Additional informytion 4s ro

hsidiay C c)nmamc-s and ﬂ\bObI:IlCS as n,q L:m.d by Ind AS-1 12 “Dlsolosm'c of linterest in Other Lntities" dre as under

ates Caintry of

Percentage of voling
- poewer/ Profit sharing

Percentage of voting
power/ Irofit sharing

Liigorporation . - as at J1sLMgEeR: o - -as af 31st March,
e L~ L 20119
India - L 100.00% - 100.00%
(301ﬁp'ﬁny Limifed  Indid 22 80% 22.50%

unrt,d b\( Paragraph 2 of the Uun,ral lmtmctmm to Schedule 1 (P‘ut I UJ" th (Oll'lpdllleh Acl, 2013 for Prepumuon of Lonsolldd[ed

" Finaneial Statementd ave as fHllows:
; e M Mef f"\SS‘E‘ES, ie. fotal assels -.mim:s tutal liabililes
Name of Latity
_ B ' 31-03-2020 31-03-2019
Parent. - N _ :
Tower Investment & Tradiog Company Limited ' 86%| ) 4,70.47.426 _86%] 5,31,50,165
Subsidiary i B - : ot . : .
Saket Cement Peoclucts Privde Limited 13%| 72.52.925 ]3%| 85,26,00%
Assaciates ” T - St o i
Khatu Investment & Lrading] Cowpany Limited (Equily Methad) 0% - 42,035 0% 97 A06
Lotal attributable o the uwu'c_l:fs ul l'_hc parent ' 100%] 3 ,43,9_2,4_06 1 _ L% 6.37,74.580
Nﬂlm.c .nf [\"n.ﬁ oy ) il W’W“ﬁ‘ﬁff of Profit & Loss .
: . - o 3143-2020 . : 31-G3-2019
Tarent ] B o — - . - - —
Tower Inveatment & Tradurg Company Limited 85%| (83.18.971) 88%| {47,81,485)
Subsidiary B L ' B ' . : |
Saleet Cement Pmducts l’rl\fd[e Limited M%l {13.54,791) ll%l B (5.94.437)|
 |Asspciates: ] AN . N .
© |Khatu Investment & Trading] Corripﬂuy Limited {Fequily Method) [ 1% (1,12,467) 1% (78,898)
Total allribntabic § the owiers of the parent ' 10094 {97,86,228) HJO% (54,54,814)
- ] ot . d,,‘,:,. bll.ucm Qther (,ompl chensive Ingome
Narpe of Endity T 31052020 31032009 _
Parent . : . .
. | Lower Investment & Trad lg;!;( onpany Limited _ 72%] ' 208154 | ] (4,005)
" |Subsidiary I .
Saket Cement Products Privifte [ inited 2800 80,799 | 23%| {1.207)
7 |Associates . . . ' ) ) ]
KDhatu Investmen{ & Trad] nplCompany Limited (Hguity Method) % - (1% - :
Total altributable fo.the owners of the parent L00%| - 281,953 100% {5,302}
- o _ Share in T(it';l ( mnpr(.hl. I!JI\L Incomc,
Name of Enfity e 31032020 : _31-03-2019
Parent : e N . . . : ’
Tower Imcstmcnt& llddm Ci}mpmw [ inmited . '85%| (8],]0__5{]?} 88%! (47,85,580)
iSubsidiary %_ ) - . ) ' -
Saket Cement Préducts lelu. Limnited . 139%] (12,73,591} 1% (5.95,6393
Associates ] : - B B
Ehatu Invéstrent & Frading JC‘umpan} Limited (Hguity NILUIO(]) 1% {112,467 |
0 the owners of the parent . 106% (84,97.275} - | '

Total attljb_ulnblt‘
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